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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit attributable to owners of Wong’s International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to HK$89.5 million, as
compared to the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$761.7 million for the last financial year.

This was mainly attributable to the reduction on the
decrease in the value of the Group’s properties and the
properties held by the Group’s joint ventures (the “Joint
Ventures”). The decrease in value of properties held by
the Group and the Joint Ventures was HK$25.5 million as
compared to a decrease in value of HK$866.0 million for
the last financial year. The decrease in the value of the
properties is unrealised and did not have any impact on
the Group’s cash flow. The properties held by the Group
and the Joint Ventures are mainly for leasing purposes
and the rental income had no significant change during
the year.

Earnings per share for the year was HK$0.19 as
compared to loss per share of HK$1.59 for the last
financial year. The Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$3,256.7 million, as
compared to HK$3,224.6 million for the last financial
year. Operating profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 was HK$120.3 million, as compared to operating
loss of HK$375.1 million for the last financial year. The
improvement of operating results was driven by the
reduction on the decrease in the value of properties held
by the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.015
(2020: HK$0.02) per share for 2021. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.025
(2020: HK$0.02) per share on or before 25 July 2022
to the shareholders of the Company. Payment of such
proposed final dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

For the purpose of maintaining a reasonable return
on investment and rewarding shareholders for their
continued support, the Board has adopted a Dividend
Policy for distribution of dividend to the shareholders
in accordance with the Group’s profit performance.
The dividend payout ratio will be based on the profit
attributable to the shareholders excluding share of profit
and loss of joint ventures/associated companies and
change in fair value of investment properties which have
been recorded in the consolidated income statement
after considering various prevailing factors at the time
of declaration of dividend, including but not limited to
financial performance and projected profitability, liquidity
position and capital efficiency, compliance with financial
covenants, dividends received from subsidiaries,
future growth and commitments, potential investment
opportunities, relevant provisions under the Company’s
bye-laws, laws of Bermuda and other applicable rules
and regulations. The Company may also distribute
special dividend from time to time in addition to the
ordinary dividend.

Depending on the situation from time to time, dividend
recommendation and payment shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the
approval of shareholders, where appropriate. There is no
assurance that dividends will be recommended or paid
in any particular amount for any given period.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 5
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) Division

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$3,192.7 million, as compared
to HK$3,157.2 million for the last financial year. The
segment profit attributable to the EMS Division was
HK$82.1 million, a 38.2% decrease as compared to
HK$132.8 million for the last financial year. The decrease
in the segment net profit was attributable to shortage
of raw materials and higher material price as a result of
the impact of COVID-19 and increase in the wages and
operating expenses in China.

Property Holding Division

Revenue for the Property Holding Division for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$64.0 million, as
compared to HK$67.5 million for the last financial year.
The segment profit was HK$66.5 million, as compared to
segment loss of HK$780.1 million for last financial year.
The improvement was driven by the reduction on the
decrease in the value of properties held by the Group
and the Joint Ventures.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of
HK$3,621.5 million (2020: HK$3,221.7 million) of banking
facilities. Total bank borrowings were HK$2,075.7 million
(2020: HK$2,038.7 million). Cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and restricted cash were
HK$1,414.9 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$1,422.1 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$660.8 million, as compared to
HK$616.6 million as at 31 December 2020. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as Property Holding Division.
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Chairman’s Statement

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2021 was 0.16 (2020: 0.15). The net gearing ratio was
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and restricted cash.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, Chinese Renminbi and Vietnam Dong. Consistent
with its prudent policy on financial risk management,
the Group does not use any foreign exchange hedging
products. The Group recognises the currency risk in the
fluctuation of Chinese Renminbi and will closely monitor
and actively manage the risk involved.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, restricted cash and equity attributable to
owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 7
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed
approximately 3,500 employees. The Group adopts a
remuneration policy which is commensurate with job
nature, qualification and experience of employees.
In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and
employee related insurance benefits, discretionary
bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.

PROSPECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic is still ongoing, and the
resulting operating woes, including lockdown,
substantial disruption of the supply chain, acute
shortages of certain key materials, notably integrated
circuits, and various serious logistic issues, are set
to persist throughout the 2022 year. Aggravating the
situation are certain geopolitical risks, including the
continuous trade tensions between US and China and
the recent escalating Russia-Ukraine crisis. Lockdown
has also hindered the development of the Group’s new
manufacturing facility in Hai Duong Province, Vietnam
as potential customers are prevented from visiting and
qualifying the new facility even though their reception
of the facility has been favorable. On a brighter note,
customer orders have remained buoyant and there are
signs that the worldwide lockdown situation has begun
to ease.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS (continued)

Presently, a main focus of the Group is to develop the
manufacturing facility in Vietnam, which the Directors
believe to be an important source of future growth, and a
new facility with a floor area of 30,000 square meters is
being built to replace the old one. Even though progress
of construction has been delayed by the pandemic
situation, it is now expected to be completed in 2022.
Also, under the current difficult supply-chain conditions,
the Group will closely liaise with its customers and
provide them with prompt feedback and proposed
remedial actions based on specific requirements. It will
also work closely with customers to explore alternative
sources of supply of materials, such as Chinese and
Asian semiconductors and passive components sources.
Overall, the Group will continue its efforts to expand
customer base, improve operating efficiency, implement
stringent cost control and provide value-added services
to customers, and is confident that the EMS business
will resume its growth path once the pandemic situation
is alleviated.

Market conditions for commercial properties in Hong
Kong have somewhat stabilized, and the commercial
properties held by the Group, directly or indirectly, have
been almost fully leased out, generating stable income
to the Group.

Presently, the world, especially Hong Kong, is plagued
by a very contagious variant of COVID-19, Omicron.
The Group will do its best to cope with the situation,
putting the health of our employees, the interests of
our customers and partners and our corporate social
responsibilities as our top priorities.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 9
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AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the tenth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continued confidence
in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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2021 2020 Changes
Mo B BOX EFa
Notes % % % point
EEXE Operating results
BRERBA Y Employee benefit expenses
WaB Dt to revenue % 14.9 13.8 1.1
Hith 2B H Other operating expenses to
WaHBED revenue % 5.4 5.2 0.2
“iBFE, (BE) = Operating profit/(loss) % 3.7 (11.6) 15.3
EAE S (EE) = Net profit/(loss) % 2.7 (23.6) 26.3
Bk = Return on equity (%) 1 2.0 (17.6) 19.6
B RSB R Financial health
FEEHEER Net debts to total equity %
Bkt 2 15.8 15.0 0.8
B ks Borrowings to total equity %
Bt 3 46.3 47.0 -0.7
—E-—-F —E-TF -
2021 2020 Changes
B 6 b = Financial ratio
N iE A
mEEL R (5) Current ratio (Times) 4 1.7 1.5 N/A
BREE Per share data
B#0.19t (B 1.597T) T E A
HRERN, (EBE) Earnings/(loss) per share HK$0.19 (HK$1.59) N/A
MiaE - Notes:
1. ERERE = FFEk (B18) /agxs 1. Return on equity % = net profit or (loss)/total equity
2. FEEHERZE L = (BER -THEBBELRE - 2. Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings — total lease liabilities
RERBFCEEBMBTE - RHARTER - ZRFIR - total cash and cash equivalents — short-term bank deposits —
) R restricted cash)/total equity
3. EREeEsa N = BER BN 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4. RENLLE = RBEE mBAE 4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
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Five-Year Financial Summary

ZB--F ZTZZF ZZ-NF “T-N\F Bt
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
BT BT BB BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EF RESULTS
25 Revenue 3,256,729 3,224,636 3,781,156 4,013,546 3,817,543
2EF)E,/ (F#) Operating profit/(loss) 120,300 (375,056) 245,157 524,818 315,612
BATSRATAE,  Profit/(loss) before income
(E518) tax 126,662 (735,630) 304,569 1,473,119 513,190
e Income tax (37,188) (26,048) (38,242) (51,370) (33,283)
FEEFE/ (BB)  Profit/(loss) for the year 89,474 (761,678) 266,327 1,421,749 479,907
EEAEWGFE/  Profit/(loss) attributable to
(EB#E) owners 89,474 (761,674) 266,327 1,421,749 479,907
FHERES Non-controlling interests = (4) _ _ _
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236 8,267,682 6,719,963
BEE Total liabilities 3,268,739 3,252,157 3,177,012 3,447,493 3,203,471
SEREAAZER Equity attributable to owners 4,478,537 4,333,774 5,006,220 4,820,185 3,516,488
R Non-controlling interests - — 4 4 4
BEzhafE Total equity and liabilities 7,747,276 7,585,931 8,183,236 8,267,682 6,719,963
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which were approved
by them at the board meeting held on the date of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property holding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out on pages 103 to 235 of this Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and results
by operating segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021 as follows:

BET I
HK$’000
EfFEHRE - BER Interim dividend of HK$0.015 per share paid 7177
B 0.0157C
BRARERE  AEREET Proposed final dividend of HK$0.025 per share in issue 11,963
& 17 7% 0.025 7T
19,140

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to
10 of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial
risks and the management of the risks of the Group
are provided in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 10 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 11 and 12 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 15
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in flag-
selling activities etc. Certain companies in the Group
have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of
their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events

The subsequent event is set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.



FEEFRHES

AEBERAREBEREPAEREREER
DEME

EEERES

Directors’ Report

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:

ELE:
%
RiEsE Purchases
— RAHER — the largest supplier 8
— AREEEEHTE — five largest suppliers combined 29
HERE Sales
— JAREP - the largest customer 44
— ARBFAHTE — five largest customers combined 76

BFEE HEBBASERR (MEEMAHER
RRAPRAE% DA L) AN AT (7] By [ 19
EHA D HERRE S 2k

EFEMBEBRE

REBBREIAFZ2X¥E  BERBERIN
$13H -

IENGIEI

FTENBRARFBHIRNGEHERRK
BaE 20 ©

EEIS
AREREZBRASHIFTRTIENEGE M BHRRK
BHEJI_32°

Al 73 Ik fi 18

RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H  ARFRE
ARz Aal AR BREELRFAE A
DIKEEE B A BE597,771,0007T (=F
— T4 B¥591,467,0007T) °

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) were interested at any time
during the year in the above suppliers or customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are summarised on page 13.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021 calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$597,771,000 (2020:
HK$591,467,000).

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 17
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares
which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws or
Bermuda laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in book values of property, plant and

equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year amounted to HK$496,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Wan Man Keung
(retired on 1 June 2021)
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund
Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes
(appointed on 1 April 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund and Dr. Yu Sun Say shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and considers them as independent.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 19
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (former name: Wong Chung
Mat, Benedict), aged 70, joined the Group in 1975. He
has been a Director of the Company since June 1990.
In February 2003, he was appointed Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong is
the Chairman of the Administrative Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company and a director
of various other companies of the Group. He is also
a director of Salop Hong Kong Limited which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He obtained a
Master of Science degree in Operations Research from
Ohio State University and was conferred an Honorary
Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong. He has
over 47 years’ experience in the electronics industry.
Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, and
brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung
Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui and Ms. Wong
Chung Yan, Claudia, and brother-in-law of Ms. Luk
Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming; who are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 44, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She is currently a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited and a member of the Enterprise Support Scheme
Assessment Panel under the Innovation and Technology
Fund. She obtained a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering
Management from University of Southern California. Ms.
Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, and
a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung
Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Ms. Wong Chung
Yan, Claudia, Ms. Luk Kit Ching and Ms. Woo Sin Ming;
who are substantial shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 73, joined the Group
in 1985. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. He is also a member of the Administrative
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He was
formerly the Group’s Financial Controller. In July 2007,
he ceased to be the Group’s Financial Controller and
became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and obtained a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences, a Master of Arts degree in China Development
Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, he
had approximately 10 years’ experience with a major
international firm of accountants.

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 67, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Administrative Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
other companies of the Group. He has over 44 years
of working experience in electronics manufacturing
industry and now has the overall responsibility of serving
a portfolio of customers at Wong’s Electronics Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Prior to joining the Group, he held various managerial
positions in manufacturing, planning, sales & marketing
departments in multinational and listed companies. Mr.
Hung obtained a Diploma in Industrial Engineering from
the Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master degree
in Business Administration from the City University of
Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes, aged 63, joined the
Group in June 2016 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance. He is responsible for all aspects relating
to accounting, finance and taxation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. He was appointed Director of the
Company in April 2021. He is also a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company and a director
of certain other companies of the Group. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor degree of Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Before joining the Group, he has more than 30 years
of experience in financial management, business
control and auditing with renowned multinational and
listed companies as well as an international audit firm
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA, FCA, FCPA (Aust),
FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FAIA (Hon), CGA
(Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 68, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in April
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Li is the honorary chairman of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and an independent non-
executive director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He was an
independent non-executive director of Hang Seng Bank
Limited (retired on 27 May 2021). Dr. Li is presently a
member of The 13th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was a
former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong,
former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee,
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and former adviser to the Ministry
of Finance on international accounting standards of the
People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 83, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the HKI Group of
Companies and a director of a number of manufacturing
and investment companies. He is an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited and Fu Shek
Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu had served as a
member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region acting as its Hong Kong affairs
adviser. He is currently a member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JP, aged 83, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2004. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is presently a common
consultant for both K.C. Ho & Fong and Yap & Lam,
Solicitors and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former president of
The Law Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association
for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former
Hong Kong Affairs Adviser and has served on various
public and community organizations. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings
Limited and Hung Hing Printing Group Limited.

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, aged 71, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in
November 2015. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a chartered engineer
and a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology, United Kingdom. He possesses 45 years of
extensive experience in technology transfer, technical
management in research and development as well
as strategic business development for high-tech
companies. Mr. Cheung was a former member of the ICT
R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of the Hong Kong
Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
(ASTRI). He is currently a non-executive director of
Ecoinno (H.K.) Limited and a member of the Electrical
Engineering Departmental Advisory Committee of the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung obtained
a Master of Engineering from McMaster University,
Canada, a Master of Science in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 54, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in USA.
Mr. Chan is also a director of certain companies of the
Group, including Wong’s International USA Corporation
which is engaged in the development of the Company’s
original design and manufacturing business in the
North America market. He has more than 30 years of
experience in the field of electronics manufacturing.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan has worked in
various leading international manufacturing companies
in USA. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Colorado,
Boulder.

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 48, joined the Group in
August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant to the
Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the Group. She
is responsible for overseeing Administration in Corporate
Office in Hong Kong,formulating and implementing
strategies and business plans for the development of
the Group’s property leasing and management. Ms.
Wong is also a director of certain companies of the
Group. Ms. Wong accumulated extensive experience in
various functions of office management. She obtained
a Bachelor degree of Business Administration from the
Open University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Yau Wai Ching, Monica, aged 56, joined the Group
in March 2016. She is currently Vice President of Central
Sourcing Management Department and responsible for
making necessary sourcing and procurement for the
electronic manufacturing business of the Group. She is
also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Yau
holds a Bachelor degree of Business in Transport and
Logistics Management from RMIT University, Australia.
She has more than 30 years of experience in the
manufacturing industry.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Directors’ relationship with substantial
shareholder

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, is the brother-in-
law of Ms. Luk Kit Ching, who became a substantial
shareholder of the Company in October 2021. Ms. Wong
Yin Man, Ada, Executive Director of the Company, is a
niece of Ms. Luk Kit Ching.

Directors’ emoluments

There were increment to the basic salary entitled by
certain Executive Directors with effect from 1 January
2022 as follow:

RABEKRFH
Adjusted annual
basic salary

BT
HK$

HITES Executive Directors
ERREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4,506,749
TEHZLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2,406,222
PRTEEE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 803,076
FRIZRF 4 Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 1,430,000

AARZEERNEHE_ZTE_—F+=_A4
Zt+—BILFENM e RES NG E P ER
=MEE10°
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The total amount of emoluments of each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EERTETHRABZER INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H ' KARAFIEZE As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions
MEBTBRABRARQG S ETMMAEE  of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
(THEREBFAMHSED ([FAKEHEE  in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
B]) EXVER) 2B - HHEER)D MES+S Company or any of its associated corporations (within
BB ELENESFMEEENE 3526 E  the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
EfRFzESMAZERSARE - ZBIRE E  Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required
METASEETESRRFNZAESTE] (12 to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
PR ) MEARQNT NBAZZ#ES%42 notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

A pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

RAERABRGBZEFR Long positions in shares of the Company

HIEEBTRG

Aot

Approximate

EEREA percentage

EERR =20 Number of of the issued

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares

FABEK Emla AR EHEAER 2 #m (M)

Wong Chung Mat, Ben Beneficial owner and interest of controlled 136,828,569 28.60%

corporation (Note)

TEH EmlEAA
Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%
BRI EmlAA
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,837,500 0.38%
il EmHAA
Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner 500,000 0.10%
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EERFETHRAEZESE (&)

REQXARB z2HFR (HF)

MaE

TERKEEHEEA(REZFHFRBAEEMN) RARQA
136,828,569 kIt E i « ZEMRMBEBUT &M
A -

(a) 1,000,000 B EEEBFREEBAFES -

(b) 135,828,569 1% fi% 15 A Salop Hong Kong Limited
A - MazarAlhERRTESERAB RITH -

BRAXFEZEEN RZEZ—F+H
=t+—H ARAEEKEBTHAB XK
EXBAZHEABER AR B sk H T A 55
ZE (EERBHRHBEKRFIEXVE) 2%
7 BEARNKEFTFHREEECLENESF R
HEEPIE 3521 A E BT 2 il 2 #
wHAR  HBERBIZRETRIMEARNRF] R
BT 2 EmBOAR o

FERRZHER

BAATEEREETHARRM R
——F+-A=+—8 FHAL (XAT
EFRETTHABRI) RAQFRA K
FERBRR ) R B DA T A 1 2
BCERERFLERMAZ EERAR
0
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were held
in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben personally.

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Hong Kong Limited, which
was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2021, persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows :
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FERRzER (&) INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
REQXTRRGBZEFR Long positions in shares of the Company
KiEeBTRG
Aot
TERRER KB Approximate
Name of ZEREE percentage
substantial 54 Number of of the issued
shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares
EREAA (M)
Salop Hong Kong Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 135,828,569 28.39%
TR BHEAA - RREERSRER
Bl A (FisE2)
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of spouse 90,308,532 18.87%
and founder of a discretionary trust
(Note 2)
R EnEA ALK EER (ME2)
Luk Kit Ching Beneficial owner and interest of 90,308,532 18.87%
spouse (Note 2)
EHEAAN (MFE2(c))
Kong King International Beneficial owner (Note 2(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%
Limited
RiEEHpEE 2w (EE2(c))
WLJ Holding Limited Interest of controlled corporation 88,073,532 18.41%
(Note 2(c))
EFEA (FfEE2(c))
Cantrust (Far East) Limited Trustee (Note 2(c)) 88,073,532 18.41%
T ABHL BERBEAALKERFHE 2 #ER (M5E3)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Beneficial owner and joint interest 78,526,001 16.41%
(Note 3)
HAfE A HEAFA 2w R GBER ([HFE3)
Woo Sin Ming Joint interest and interest of spouse 78,526,001 16.41%
(Note 3)
THEEB EREAA
Wong Chung Yan, Claudia Beneficial owner 38,224,881 7.99%
F BN RREEFEZEIA (51 4)
Everitt, Chung Chui Founder of a discretionary trust 31,379,167 6.56%
(Note 4)
BB A (MH5E4)
Sycamore Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 4) 31,379,167 6.56%
EFEA (M5t 4)
HSBC International Trustee Trustee (Note 4) 31,379,167 6.56%

Limited
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FERRzER (F)

REQXARB z2HFR (HF)

MaE

Salop Hong Kong Limited &— MR £ AT ES
BMBRESZAF - F2BEERFETHRAE
2K ] —EIMIET o

TRBAEEREZTFEZELTWES (REFEHK
HEEH)) RA AR —1H#£90,308,532 AR MDD+
B - ZERHOBBUATEMNEE ¢

(a) 1,000,000 iR fn BB E BB EERARFE °

(b) 1,235,000 &M T RMMIEEZEFEZS
Z+HEE -

(c)  88,073,532f% A% 17 B3 Kong King International
Limited 1RIE—TERREIEREIFHE - MELMEE
Wi R (REZEHFLBAER) ZEFTZE
% A > Cantrust (Far East) Limited 81| & 12 &
A ° Kong King International Limited ¢ WLJ
Holding Limited 2 & # & - Mz 2 7 8l &
Cantrust (Far East) Limited 2 8% & - £ &M%
Jo4 -~ Kong King International Limited + WLJ
Holding Limited &2 Cantrust (Far East) Limited
B R AR —#88,073,532 Kk H 2
s o

TRREGCEREZTFHERLTWE S (REFEHF K
BB G0 AR F[R—H# 78,526,001 &A% 1) R 1%
B - ZEROBEBUATEMNEE ¢

(a) 50,458,041 JRAX D AT BRI EMAFE -

(b) 28,067,960 f&AX(H B F ABL 5t 4 M AAE A 1
HEEBAE -

FTEMEZLTERA (REFHFRBEKH) B
NAEB1,379, 167 M P HERE - ZERMA
Sycamore Assets Limited 18 % — 18 & # 2 5t #
B MIARLETHES (REZHFRBEKH)
#% 1= ¥ Z El #* A - HSBC International Trustee
Limited 8] &1 A ° Sycamore Assets Limited F
HSBC International Trustee Limited % & # & o
F £ # & £ - Sycamore Assets Limited & HSBC
International Trustee Limited & B R AFH R —
#£31,379,167 &A% 19 2 #E 2 o
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. Salop Hong Kong Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

2. Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and his wife, Ms. Luk Kit Ching, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
90,308,532 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny
personally.

(b) 1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

(c) 88,073,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by virtue of the
SFO) and Cantrust (Far East) Limited was the trustee. Kong
King International Limited was wholly-owned by WLJ Holding
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East)
Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Kong King
International Limited, WLJ Holding Limited and Cantrust (Far
East) Limited was deemed to be interested in the same block
of 88,073,532 shares.

3. Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming, were
deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same block of
78,526,001 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a) 50,458,041 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
personally.

(b) 28,067,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

4. Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 31,379,167 shares in the Company which were held
by Sycamore Assets Limited under a discretionary trust, of which
Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee.
Sycamore Assets Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited. Each of Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Sycamore Assets
Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the same block of 31,379,167 shares.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2021, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 26 June 2020. No option has been
granted under the Scheme since its adoption date and
up to 31 December 2021.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward the eligible
participants (as described in paragraph 2 below)
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

2. Participants

Eligible participants include Directors (including
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors)
and employees (whether full time or part time
employees) of any member of the Group who
the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.
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BRETEME (&) SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

32

(continued)

AFRITZROBE 3. Total number of shares available for issue
EITEARBE AT 8 R AR AT AR The overall limit on the number of shares which
MR IR T M AR T2 PR A R1TE may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
BREMUREZETIRNOEE B options granted and yet to be exercised under the
R TNEHBAARRRTREETRG Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
30% ° Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
BBHEHECERLR 4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
BRIFEIFAR AL E - BRI ER 121 The total number of shares issued and to be issued
REAR BT R BZET 8] kAR aE(A upon exercise of the options granted to any grantee
HMt 2B PR EBEABAZBIRE (8 (including both exercised and outstanding options)
FEATEREARITEERE) 287K under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
1T EIT2RHBE - TEHBBARAT Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
BETRNZ1% ° 1% of shares of the Company in issue, unless
approved by shareholders.
A AR 15 8 IR R B B IR 10 2 A RR 5. Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option
FrEBRE  BIRERARE R THEER The option period of a particular option is the
E2HRE BN REZENREET period during which the option can be exercised,
ZEET Mg ZARA - MAEEMAIER such period to be determined and notified by the
T ZEEAERRE AR 1045 Board to each grantee at the time of making the
& IEm ° offer, and in any event such period of time shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.
BREEBTEMNESENRZESNRER 6. Minimum period for which an option must be

BREFERTERNBEREESIN - BB
PR A I E B RIBZ AT SRR
KAITEERT > A BRERE R LA
B
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held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1 year
for which an option must be held after its date of
grant before such an option can be exercised under
the terms of the Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

7.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option
and the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered to
the grantee.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
Life of the Scheme
The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years

commencing on 26 June 2020 up to and including
25 June 2030.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
associated corporations, or its specified undertaking
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had, whether directly
or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every Director
or other officer of the Company and the liquidator or
trustees (if any) for the time being shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office, to the
extent permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.
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EXKRE
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FIBEANT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the details of the significant
investment are set out below:

BEAEERERLLA
NGIEY S A 3L ith B EERGEE Proportion of FEX7
Name of Place of Number of ownership Principal
company incorporation shares held interest activities
REBERRES REER

Talent Chain BVI 357 35.7% Investment

Investments Limited holding
BRIEEBRAE (M) B i A MERE
Crown Opal Investment  Hong Kong N/A 35.7% Property holding

Limited (Note)

MisE: @ B % & A R 2 7 ATalent Chain Investments
Limited Z Mt B AF] -

RZEZ_—F+_A=+—H " RTalent
Chain Investments Limited & B #% & HIR
NAE 2B FEE A B 2,135,000,000 7T °
ZeBBBAEERBREESY  MAREE
A7 ® 2 156,600,000 * BIASEEBEE
27.8% °

REBEEZE_TE-_—F+TA=+T—BLF
€ Hi R - FE 15 Talent Chain Investments
Limited K8 BRI & H R 2 7 2 AHE =B
32,100,0007T * ZeHMEREREEERE
FEA o

Talent Chain Investments Limited & & 2
REBRAGIZRERFBAMNEIERN Two
Harbour Square ¥ #EF - KEFE A K E
ZBEFKRE  AEERBAEFEEGEZ
YIEIBE 2R MEETEAR -
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Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited is a subsidiary of Talent Chain
Investments Limited.

As at 31 December 2021, net investment in Talent Chain
Investments Limited and Crown Opal Investment Limited
was HK$2,135.0 million, which amount exceeds 5% of
the total assets of the Group, and the fair value was
HK$2,156.6 million, which represents 27.8% of the total
assets of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the share of
profits of Talent Chain Investments Limited and Crown
Opal Investment Limited, which included in the share of
profits of joint ventures, was HK$32.1 million.

The investment in Talent Chain Investments Limited and
Crown Opal Investment Limited is holding a commercial
building in Kwun Tong, Two Harbour Square. It is the
Group’s preference to hold its interest in its attributable
share of the property project as much as possible for
leasing purposes after taking into account the Group'’s
financial requirements.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2021, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$1,095.4 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2021. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free.The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2021.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture
companies are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors
of the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to provide an overview of
the Group’s management of significant environmental,
social and governance issues. The report has been
prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange ESG Guide”) which is applicable for
the financial year of 2021. In the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, for the year under review, the Company
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the Stock Exchange ESG Guide.

This Report covers the core activities of the Group which
involve operations of the three manufacturing factories
located in Shenzhen, Vietnam and Suzhou under our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco Wong'’s
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, Welco Technology
Vietnam Company Limited and Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited, respectively. Furthermore, in respect
of the social aspect, the Company’s principal office
in Hong Kong is also involved. Additional information
in relation to the Group’s corporate governance is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual
Report.
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BOARD MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s ESG objectives, strategies
and management approach; and sets the process
to evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG
issues. The Board regularly assesses and reviews
the environmental, social and governance risks and
opportunities, formulate its strategies and ensures the
establishment and maintenance of an effective control
systems on the environmental, social and governance
aspects of its business. The Board discusses, reviews
and evaluates all relevant ESG issues and the progress
towards the targets at least once a year. The Group
has set up an ESG Working Group which consists of
members from senior and middle management to assist
the Board to implement the ESG related strategies
and targets. The ESG Working Group strives to guide
and monitor various business functions to effectively
implement the measures to achieve the ESG strategies
and targets.

ESG STRATEGY

The Group’s ESG Strategy is to strive for high level of
positive outcomes on 5 major areas:

(i) Commit to do business with high degree of ethical
governance;

(i) Provide high quality and safe products to the
customers with a well-established system to select
high quality, efficient and reliable suppliers;
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(v)

ESG STRATEGY (continued)

(iii)

Establish a good and supportive workplace that
upholds fair and equal treatment, competitive
welfare and incentive system and an effective
training program aim for sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical workforce;

Actively participate in local community activities
and good corporate citizenship through engaging
various volunteering works, charity events and
education donation with an aim to create shared
value and support the people in need; and

Set up a sound environmental management system
to ensure compliance throughout the operations
meanwhile actively control and endeavor to reduce
emissions, wastes and inefficient use of resources
and energy.

EMEENIRE HEREREE
Our ESG areas of concern

HE

Social

TEBMEERESRIER
e Workplace Quality and

PR BTV REIR Employee Relationship
e Emissions and Energy &
Conservation - Employment
FA7K B TAR|
e Water Consumption - Labour Standards
EEYER Bl
e Waste Mgnggement - Development and Training
2 A E A &R fEEREZ S
e Other Use of Resources Health and Safety
RIzE(L M@FM
¢ Climate Change e Operating Practices
TTRAFER 2 PEER e SEE TD
HEENSH I o ,
Also covered in the ’ Sugpily Chain Managment
Corporate Governance EmAft
Report of this Annual - Product Responsibility
Report =B5
Anti corruption
?ilu__uhﬁ
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MATERIALITY

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture and
supply good quality products, while caring about the
community, environment and natural resources and
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. The
Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments
to our stakeholders, including shareholders and
investors, regulatory bodies, communities, customers,
suppliers and employees. We realise that dialogues with
stakeholders as well as their feedback and concerns are
crucial for the continuous enhancement and growth of
the Group. Communication channels are as follows:

¥ n & 4 Bl SHERE
Stakeholder Groups Engagement Channels
FE R
Annual/interim reports
NARIRE
BRRREREE Company webpage
Shareholders and Investors PEANG
Circulars
BERRE
General meetings
WE
Repoms
EERE Ree,/ 5]
Regulatory Bodies Certlflcatlons/hcensmg
_i N i"ﬁ&,‘lﬂ T\
Meetmgs emails and correspondences
REZD
T+ E Charity events
Communities B M3 K
Emails and correspondences
NGIEENE
Qompany webpage
EFE MEERE
Customers Sat|sfact|on surveys
_i v B8 i"ﬁ&,‘lﬂ Ng
Meetmgs emails and correspondences
FR g I F A
HEs Supplier assessment
Suppliers 2% BEBREX
Meetings emails and correspondences
= uiﬁz *i*ﬁ
Meetings and emails
ERGETE
Pfrfo\rmance assessment
BT = ollEt &
Employees Training programs
NCIVEES)
Company events
NER

Notice board
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MATERIALITY (continued)

The Materiality matrix after external and internal
assessment is summarised as follows:

EEME
Materiality Assessment

5.00 . ‘
4.50 ‘ 16 . 20
- 12
c
# 8 400 ‘ 17 ‘ ..
v S . 14 15
£ L 350
@
S
W 9
g 3.00
250 '
2.00 2.50 3.00 3.50 4.00 4.50 5.00
HIHENEZT
Important to stakeholders
gk HE HE gk HE HE
Area Item Topic Area Item Topic
FBREE LKA S ATERS
Business Strategy and 12 Diversity and Equal
Performance Opportunity
EREE 13 et Alraan and Retent
N e alent Attraction and Retention
Govﬁﬁnce Risk Management Management
FaE B THEAR TR
Anti-/corruption 14 Employee Benefits and
wT Workplace Well-being
BEER Labour 15 EERSE
Law Compliance Development and Training
s S— o BrmEEne
nergy Consumption R
Management Occupational Health and Safety
AT 7 BIRBINSE
Water Management Employee and Labour Practice
B ER B o
Greenhouse Gas Emission
B - e I8 IR AT
Environmental @s@%ﬂl\qﬂaterials Supplier Management and
ERRBE Assessment
BEEYER Product and EmEERZR
Waste Management Service Product Quality and Safety
EHER
Transportation Management
(rBnER HE o0 HEBE
Chemical Management Community Community Engagement
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group believes that environmental protection,
low carbon footprint, resources conservation and
sustainability development is the key trends in the
society. We are committed to minimize the impacts to
the environment and natural resources and continuously
improve the environmental sustainability of the business.
QOur vision is to bring good quality products to the
customers around the world while actively control and
endeavor to reduce emissions, wastes and inefficient
use of resources and energy. An Environmental, Health
and Safety Committee (“EHSC”) has been established
to oversee environmental, health and safety matters.
Our manufacturing facilities are constantly managed
and monitored under international environmental quality
systems (ISO 14001 and ISO 45001).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Our Environmental Policy includes:

Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection;

Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to eliminate
or minimise environmental impact due to hazardous
substances or wastes;

Identify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries;

Conserve all resources through efficient usage;

Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements;

Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements;

Meet international hazardous substance regulations
and green requirements from specific customers;
and

Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2021, our NOx, SOx and PM were 1,985.8
kgs, 1.39 kgs and 139.86 kgs respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2020, the increase was mainly due to
shipment required local vehicle transportation increased
in 2021. Relevant departments have been taking
measures to maintain vehicles in good conditions in
order to minimise air emission.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2021, our CO, emission was 17,933 tons and electricity
consumptions was 31,030,526 kwh. Comparing
with the result in 2020, there was 1.2% decrease by
improved energy efficiency. The Company considered
great importance on energy efficiency to minimize the
greenhouse gas emission.

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions, emission

of CO

, energy consumption; and improve energy

efficiency include:

Controlled production area temperature close to

upper limitation to reduce energy consumption;
Replaced traditional lamps with LED lamps;

More frequently daily ON/OFF control at chiller or
split air-conditioners;

Used cooling tower to replace chiller for chambers;

Applied window films to save about 3% of the total
consumption for air-conditioning system;

Installed a variable frequency devises in water
pumps of central AC system; and

Removed the hot gas of the oven by addition
exhaust duct installation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Water Consumption

We endeavor to conserve water effectively in the
operations and implemented water conservation
programs as follow:

o Installed the water tap with sensor for hands
washing in factories and canteens;

o Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program;

e Reduce chiller running time and improved the
utilisation; and

o Installed water recycling system to re-use of the
waters from washbasins and shower facilities and
canteens.

In 2021, water consumption was 274,538 tons which was
decreased 5.7% by comparing with the result in 2020,
due to decrease in washing hand frequency during
COVID-19 and improving usage control.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste Management

In 2021, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 101 tons and 976 tons respectively. Deionised
water after the ultrasonic aqueous cleaning process to
clean the PCBAs is within the limits after testing by an
external testing company. We reclassified the deionised
water from hazardous waste to water consumption. After
this reclassification, comparing with the result in 2020,
hazardous wastes increased 5.2% mainly due to the
volume increase for the PCB scrap materials. Comparing
with the result in 2020, non-hazardous wastes decreased
by 3.5% mainly due to better control on the waste
pallets. With the aim to create a sustainable society, we
conduct strict classification of hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes, and hazardous wastes are stored
in special areas, handled by well-trained employees
in accordance with working instructions and disposed
through accredited vendors.

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.

Other Use of Resources

Package materials are used to protect our products
in order to minimise the risk of damage during
transportation. In 2021, package materials used was
1,262 tons which was 5.0% lower than the usage in
2020.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate Change

Climate change is mainly caused by the emission of
greenhouse gases due to burning fossil fuels for energy
uses, steelmaking, cement production and forest loss.
The Company is adopting the carbon neutrality concept
and is committed to reduce the greenhouse gases by
minimising the energy consumption and improving the
energy efficiency from our daily operations through
various energy saving programs, for examples, using
lower emission or renewable source of energy, tree
plantation, etc.

The Group has assessed the potential climate
related risks to the business. Our Group has three
manufacturing factories located in Shenzhen, Suzhou
and Vietnam. They are not located in areas where
disruption to the Group’s manufacturing activities may
happen due to sustained high temperature or extreme
bad weather conditions. The Group also recognises the
impacts of climate change which includes both global
warming and weather patterns change can affect our
operation and safety of its people. The Company has
adopted appropriate measures for extreme weather
events. The Company has comprehensive guidelines
to all employees for typhoon and rainstorm warnings
in accordance with the government regulations. The
Company has strictly follow the measures for employees
working in hot weather and comply with the government
regulations. The Company has the corresponding
facilities to prevent the related employees working
in high temperature environment due to hot weather
and closely monitor the weather information for work
arrangements on time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Targets

We aim to minimise the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimising logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.
Environmental targets and plans are conveyed to the
employees to maintain an environmental cautious
workplace.

The Group is committed and formulated a series of
environmental measures and set up the targets to
reduce its operational impact on the environment. The
Group has appointed an independent ESG consultant
to facilitate the implementation of our environmental
measures and to provide advices for our continuous
improvement.

The Group has set the targets in Year 2025 to reduce
intensities of energy use, greenhouse gas emission,
waste and water consumption by 5% compared to the
result of Year 2021.
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas
of recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, diversity and other benefits
and welfare. We adopt a remuneration policy which
is commensurate with job nature, qualification and
experience of employees. In addition to the provision
of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded
to employees based on individual performance.
Remuneration packages and policies are reviewed
periodically to ensure that compensation and benefits
are in line with the market-competitive pay level. We
arrange with some hospitals in China to ensure our staffs
can receive immediate medical services when working
outside their home regions. The Group is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance, achieving a
highest standard of integrity, probity and accountability
by enforcing whistle-blowing policy. Employees at all
levels are expected to conduct themselves with integrity,
impartiality and honesty which enable our stakeholders
to have trust and faith in the Group to take care of their
needs and to fulfill its social responsibility.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

In the areas of recruitment and promotion, compensation
and dismissal, statutory laws and regulations are strictly
complied with. Overtime is on voluntary basis and is
compensated according to the local laws.

We value diversity, equal opportunity and anti-
discrimination in our workforce regardless of gender,
race, age, marital status and nationality. To promote
the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work of our
staff, the Company has joined the gender focal point
network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set up
by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between the
Company and the Government with a target to enhance
our gender awareness and understanding of gender
mainstreaming.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 53



54

BiR HERELRREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

e (&)
THREMEZRESHE (&)

B I%AR

HPIRIBEER S THB LK - BZOEHISE
MEMEREPIREREEERET - 2
AR R S IR EE LEAE ] 72 20 0 15 28 2k 0k
BB T - BIREE - 38 R8I AR
T o HAAIRREEE SRR Z R R EE HFE

NN
REIZAE o

ARBEBEHNEERERF  BRRESNHE
HIETESZE  MBERREEREAAE
R EREBEKI TN AT
X O RAutEEETT MRS S T Hr M
TR

AREB WA MEEREBE LRSS THE
BERIER (BRETNRR - (ERREMR
) RCREEDD)) }ER - RETEBRE
TREHIS THAEER - —BBERETME
BB - BRI AR RRRER -

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labour Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/
or compulsory prison labour to work. We also follow
the highest standard regarding the social insurance
requirements for the employees’ contributions.

The Company has a strict recruitment procedure
including checking identity documents and performing
background verifications to ensure the employment
candidates are lawfully employable. No employment is
allowed before the verification process is successful
completed. It is very unlikely child and forced labour will
be hired.

The Group is not aware of non-compliance of child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations (including
but not limited to: “Employment of Children Regulations”
and “Employment Ordinance”). To comply with the laws
and regulations related to child and force labour, any
employment will be terminated immediately in case of
any non-compliance case is discovered.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to
the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorised institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and supervisory
skills, safety and sales product and technical training,
etc. In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-
off for employees who take external training programs
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. We have
internal certified trainers to train relevant employees for
required technical certifications. Employees may also
join external training programs on certifications required.
We also recruit some graduates each year to take up
first level jobs and develop them to the upper levels, for
examples, technicians, buyer, planner, etc.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free from
danger and hazards to our employees. It is our principle
that occupational safety and health of employees
should be given the first and foremost consideration at
work. We implement our safety management system in
accordance with the OHSAS 18001 standard. Health and
safety issues concerning our employees are escalated to
the EHSC for decisions and actions. In addition, certain
specific positions, such as nurse and safety officers, are
employed to ensure that the workplace is safe and that
safety device and protections are adequate to avoid any
possible injuries arising from our work. An examination
of whether the workplace is contaminated by particles
is conducted by a government-recognised third party
on an annual basis. We also arrange relevant workers to
take body check periodically. Furthermore, we provide
our employees with regular intensive training programs
to alert their safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organise and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organised by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time. However, to safeguard the
health and safety of the employees during COVID-19,
certain activities were suspended in 2021.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands the importance of the supply
chain management for sustainability and committed to
establish continuous and long term relationship with the
suppliers to procure high quality materials efficiently.
We have suppliers from different regions globally.
A supplier management system is established for
selecting and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality
of the purchased materials complies with the relevant
laws and regulations. Based on adequate qualification,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department. The
Group only makes purchases from suppliers listed in
approved vendor list. A new supplier can only be added
to the approved vendor list upon detailed assessment
and approval according to the supplier management
system. The suppliers recognise the importance of our
requirements on business ethics, health and safety
environment and public responsibilities. The suppliers
need to confirm to meet the requirements and are
checked according to supplier management system
before approval. Quarterly review is conducted with key
suppliers on their scorecard performance. Suppliers fail
to meet the Group’s standards may result in termination
of the cooperation.

Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our customers
around the world is our main objective. Our Policy
includes:

e Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality;

o Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations as
well as management’s direction; and

° Comply with all relevant legislative requirements on
environmental occupational health and safety.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 57



58

BiR HERELRREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

TE (&)

EIE8H (&)

T

mt
a0

BE (&)

RARABERVEERBEZRF - BIRKE M
- RAREEEREREDNRS RPIITTLHE
NEEINEEZEA T FHETERRSE © It
RERBTE2IRNEE R EmMmISET
ASEMARNTEERRER - BMMER
SR A1SO 9001 ~ TS 16949 2 ISO 13485
ZLEIPRIRLE o

ARPRPAREE FANBERNLEPANBE
BHNE2M - ARFEBEF RHEEERS
RE W - W HEBRRHERRSE R R
Mg WREFP MHEENEETER - (@
ABE R FBERE - ARR] I FHBE
g URERMERLBENE B MABE
- HPNEML 2 EZRT A BERZEEISO
27001 » AR R EBE FRBER M AR 7 0 ER
BEARZEHIE

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

The company has established quality assurance
procedure to ensure the quality of incoming materials
and process quality, final product inspection. Product
quality and safety are ensured by defining correct
manufacturing process and process controls. Regular
internal reviews are conducted to ensure the products
meet with the customer expectations. Regular product
inspections by both internal and external professional
parties also constitute an important part of the overall
safety program. Reliability tests are conducted to
evaluate product risks. Our quality systems are in
compliance with international standards like 1ISO 9001,
TS 16949 and ISO 13485 standards.

The Company is fully aware of the importance in
protecting intellectual property rights of our own and
customers’ intellectual property rights. The Company has
signed non-disclosure agreements with the customers
and suppliers and has a strict policy to govern the rules
and procedures to protect the confidential information,
personal data and intellectual property rights of the
customers and the suppliers. The Company also applied
certificates to protect the own intellectual property rights
for our products and trademark. Our information security
systems are in compliance with international standard
ISO 27001. Our internal policies and procedures for
information based on this standard.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Code of Conduct provides guidelines to all of
our staff to meet the high standards of integrity and
honesty in their daily operation internally and externally
in order to prevent and detect any kinds of bribery
and corruption prohibited by local laws and internal
regulations. This is also to ensure that the Group
operates to the high standards of business behaviour
and ethics in our engagement with customers,
business partners, shareholders, employees and the
business community. Employees are required to sign
an undertaking not to engage in any acts of corruption
when being employed. Business partners are notified
of the Group’s Supplier General Rules of Conduct to
ensure their integrity in the dealings with the Group. We
conduct periodical training in respect of these policies
to employees and refreshing training to employees
involved in purchasing and engineering every year. We
also conduct regular seminars on integrity every year.
We have provided reading materials relating to anti-
corruption to form part of the Directors’ training during
2021. We have zero tolerance towards non-compliance
of the Group’s anti-corruption policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
a whistle-blowing program to encourage disclosure
of any misconduct or irregularities to the Compliance
Officer directly in a confidential way. All reported cases
are handled with care by the Group and are investigated
in a fair and proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the tenth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

The Group also participated in various events organised
by voluntary organisations to support and enhance
family functioning, and endeavor to contribute to the
building of a humane and caring society in Hong
Kong. We support fund raising for providing immediate
assistance to those suffered from misfortunes and to
promote environmental protection in community.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role in
various volunteering works, charity events and education
donation with an aim to create shared value and support
the people in need. Besides engaging our employees to
participate in those community and charity events, we
encourage them to bring along their family members.

In 2021, the direction of our community services
was focused on supporting the public with epidemic
prevention materials in order to minimise the risk of
exposure to coronavirus.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Community Investment (continued)

The Company donated mooncakes to SAGE Mrs. Wong
Yee Jar Jat Memorial Home for the Elderly for a very
blessed Mid-Autumn Festival in 2021.

During 2021, in order to nurture students’ creativity,
confidence and entrepreneurial leadership, the Company
made a donation to “Lingnan Entrepreneurship Initiative”
of Lingnan University to support transparent mask
research and to develop participatory opportunities
of entrepreneurial experience. The transparent mask
makes lip-reading possible to promote barrier-free
communication for the hearing-impaired.

Lingnan University and The HK Society for the Deaf -
Transparent Mask

12° Mask

20 Mook is designed to provide eomfert
and diarty for professionals who must

@O tingpens 2 Suaniarzne
OERAZBEAZERBEOE
B ALEEREE
HXEEL S e
HEAR EERAEARES
HARIHTHAE RS HIAEE

(T28M)

(ST
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e (&) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (&) Community Investment (continued)

AKANBR ZE-—FHZHFESEE > @1F The Company action in 2021 to support a good cause

ERTEMTIARFXEZREAMB#ERES LNEE  and donate a Chinese New Year care package to the

FeIARZLERTERBEEEHFE  Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Wong Yee Jar Jat Day

EEE BREARLZZBIE o Care Centre and SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial
Care & Attention Home for the Elderly to keep them
warm and safe.

CHEERTEMTRFZEE AM#EEH L Yan Chai Hospital Wong Wha San Wong Yee Jar Jat Day
Care Centre

ERESTARR AL SEELTER SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Care & Attention
Home for the Elderly
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ARENIEE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
a) RE a) Environmental
HEFE Quantitative disclosure
BRENESR —E-—F T T
Key
Performance
Indicators 2021 2020
BERBE (AFT) Air emissions (kgs)
-NO, -NO, A1.1 1,985.8 1,555.01
- S0, - S0, A1.1 1.39 1.25
-PM - PM A1.1 139.86 108.25
BEREEYEM (W) Greenhouse gas emission At.2 17,933 17,104
(tons)
FUWREBEMEEEREY N Greenhouse gas emission per Al.2 5.62 5.47
(BB RE TREN revenue (tons per revenue
BERRmEES ) HK$'million)
BEREEY) (E) Hazardous waste (tons) A1.3 101 96
BN EMNHNBEEREEY Hazardous waste per A1.3 0.03 0.03
(BB RETREN revenue (tons per revenue
B HK$’million)
mEREZY) (BR) Non-hazardous waste (tons) Al.4 976 1,011
FUWESEMHEEREEY  Non-hazardous waste per Al.4 0.31 0.32
(BB EETREN revenue (tons per revenue
EAEMED) HK$'million)
BERERE - REE Energy consumption — A2.1 31,030,526 31,421,206
(FILrE) Electricity (kwh)
FU S BN R RETREFE Energy consumption per A2.1 9,719 10,044
revenue
-T2 (e8I ABT - Electricity (kwh per revenue
WEHNEEETER) HK$'million)
FHXKE (WE) Water consumption (tons) A2.2 274,538 291,229
FWEBEMNHFEKE Water consumption per A2.2 85.99 93.09
(RSB EEBTWED revenue (tons per revenue
FEKESMEH) HK$'million)
BEMEERE (HE) Packing material use (tons) A2.5 1,262 1,329
FUREMNBEMEMER Packing material use per A2.5 0.40 0.42
£ (R EE ks revenue (tons per revenue
"I FAME ) HK$'million)
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ARENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
a) RIE (@) a) Environmental (continued)
—RIRE General disclosure
BARENESR =4-i]
Key Performance Sections
Indicators
MRS HERE  Description of emissions target set A15 MR ERI8EIR, B iR
ARk REDEL and steps taken to achieve them Em|SS|ons and Energy
B R ATERER A 22 B Conservation/Targets
Tﬁﬁ%@%@*ﬁ;}%ﬁﬂ;ﬂ%& Desc(rjiptionhof hO\C/\j/ hazardc;us A1.6 BEYEE B
B HE and non-hazardous wastes are
P RT SRR R handled, and a description of Waste Management/Targets
BERAETEL reduction target set and steps
B 15 T ERER A 27 5 taken to achieve them
PR E] ST BI6EJR(EA  Description of energy use efficiency A2.3 PR ETHIBEIR, B 1Z
M B IR R REE target set and steps taken to Emlss.lons and Energy
15 B AZFTER LAY achieve them Conservation/Targets
it S EGE A KR Description of whether there is any A2.4 = A=k
Al A EAEE - issue in sourcing water that is Water Consumption/Targets
LA K BT 32 89 A 7K fit for purpose, water efficiency
Mz BERAED target set and steps taken to
5 L B I FTERER Y achieve them
Wt ¥R EBEIRE K& Description of the significant A3.1 =
KAEBBRHNEKR impacts of activities on the Targets
E”E"&E?/HXEEE environment and natural
BRATENTE resources and the actions taken
to manage them
e krlge®y  Description of the significant A4.1 SRS,
ViN/N TEE Z-45 climate-related issues which have .
BEARGHEBEEE - impacted, and those which may Climate Change
K EH1TE impact, the Company, and the
actions taken to manage them
BisE - Notes:
(1) EMERTyE RS F RS AR % 50 P a0 W e e (1) Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used
FTaTHE o to evaluate the above performance.

(2) EHEE@EOTELY - mgmm&%mm @)
EOHE B - R RAERE

Only emissions data of NOx, SOx and PM from vehicles is
calculated. Towngas and LPG is not applicable.

3) BEIEENENGTENERAEE - (3) The GHG emissions calculation is based on electricity
consumption.
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BRRENER (&)

=1

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
b) &g b) Social
—RIRE General disclosure
—RiEE -]
HARENER
General Sections
Disclosure/
Key Performance
Indicators
WEAMERAER L Disclosure of policies and B1 BE
BT HEBERER compliance with relevant laws Employment
RO E R and regulations relating to
employment
WEAHEERENEZ 2 Disclosure of policies and B2 EEmRE 2
Bk R E ST AR compliance with relevant laws Heath and Safety
ERBRAER and regulations relating to health
and safety
TR AN A B 2 fEBE  Description of occupational health B2.3 s ey
B2 - AR and safety measures adopted, Heath and Safety
BT REE R and how they are implemented
7E and monitored
WEBEMIEA B T/E!T Disclosure of policies on improving B3 TR EIEY
TYERE M AH & employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
R AR R d it skills for discharging duties at
EIED work and description of training
activities
WEBEMFIEETR  Disclosure of policies and B4 25 T AR
SR8 TR & compliance with relevant laws Labour Standards
BTHEBERER and regulations relating to
HOIIBER preventing child and forced
labour
g ] IR IE R4S Description of measures to review B4.1 L T |
MELAE R E T & employment practices to avoid
SR &5 T child and forced labour

Labour Standards
AT B3R 2 R

Description of steps taken to
JEER B BB S PTER

B4.2 BT
eliminate such practices when Labour Standards
By a9 2 5% discovered
WEARBEEMEHESN Disclosure of policies on managing B5 eSS IE
RE Rt g R environmental and social risks of
¢ supply chain

Supply Chain Management
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ARENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
b) #& (&) b) Social (continued)
—RIEE (&) General disclosure (continued)
—MRiEE =4-i]
ARENER
General Sections
Disclosure/
Key Performance
Indicators
Wi A RS Bt s Description of practices used to B5.3 HrEEEE
BEREEIRE & identify environmental and social Supply Chain Management
g REAED risks along the supply chain, and
LA R ARRENTT 2 how they are implemented and
EERTE monitored
A 0 TE R (L E e B Description of practices used B5.4 e
RFEZARRER to promote environmentally Supply Chain Management
iy 3=k - SN preferable products and services
AN BT when selecting suppliers, and
BESRTA how they are implemented and
monitored
WEBBATIEMHESAM Disclosure of policies and B6 EREE
RIS REL 2 compliance with relevant laws Product Responsibility
BE - REELE and regulations relating to health
EEARBRTA and safety, advertising, labelling
BRI 38 <P AR RS and privacy matters relating to
EREEBROIER products and services provided
and methods of redress
Hut B4 E R R[S 405%  Description of practices relating B6.3 ERET
EERBNED to observing and protecting Product Responsibility

intellectual property rights
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BAREARER (&)

b) #& (&)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
b) Social (continued)

—REE (&)

General disclosure (continued)

—REES =4:0]
BRRENMIEER
General Sections
Disclosure/
Key Performance
Indicators
i H&EERMRE K& Description of consumer data B6.5 EREE
TR - LAKAE protection and privacy policies, Product Responsibility
BT R R B and how they are implemented
A and monitored
WEEBMh IR Disclosure of policies and B7 k&S
#PE - MR compliance with relevant laws Anti-corruption
YRR BUR K& and regulations relating to
BTHEEEER bribery, extortion, fraud and
BOIEER money laundering
i it 77 0 F5 Bt N 2R 3R Description of preventive measures B7.2 k&S
B UAKIEE and whistle-blowing procedures, Anti-corruption
MITR REERTTE and how they are implemented
and monitored
uimESRE N E TRt Description of anti-corruption B7.3 RE)S
R ESE training provided to directors and Anti-corruption
staff
R AL R 2 EEUR Disclosure of policies on community B8 HEEE
engagement Community Investment
=ZxrHENERE (Fn Focus areas of contribution (e.g. B8.1 HEEE

»E BEEE-
Xt - 8EF)

education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, heath,
culture, sport)
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BAREARER (&)

b) #= (&) b) Social (continued)
EEBHE Quantitative disclosure
=4 Employment
RBEHR AEBEKXAEE T3,471
Z/z\° BETRHLRE T RAXBAET

BARENIEEB11

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)

are as follows:

At the end of reporting period, the Group had a
total workforce of 3,471 employees. The breakdown
of the total workforce and employee turnover rates

KPI B1.1
ET#AE
RERESHEIHAE Total workforce by gender Number of Employees
B Male 1,721
hg Female 1,750
ET#AE
REBREREIMNWEIHE  Total workforce by employment type Number of Employees
2H Full time 2,461
R Part time/Temporary 1,010
ET#AE
RBEESNWEITAY Total workforce by geographical region Number of Employees
B Hong Kong 90
A A i Mainland China 3,316
SEIN Overseas 65
ET¥AE
RERAREPWETHASZ  Total workforce by age group Number of Employees
30BN T Below 30 1,216
305%ZE 50 5% 30-50 2,122
50880 £ Above 50 133
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BARENIEE (&) KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
b) #& (&) b) Social (continued)
EEWE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
EE (&) Employment (continued)
BRENERB1.2
KPI B1.2
Aot
RERETHE T REE Employees turnover rate by gender* Percentage
= Male 69.8%
z Female 52.3%

RERARIE 2B I/ X% Employees turnover rate by age group*

30T Below 30 86.9%
30250 5% 30-50 48.7%
50 %A £ Above 50 20.1%

RMEBEITWE I REAE Employees turnover rate by geographical region*

B Hong Kong 23.3%
ek Mainland China 62.2%
N Overseas 70.8%
* BAEZBET (EHEEBRERTIA  BETE * Full time employees only (included staff and worker, but
R BERET) - MAREABEERSR excluded part time/temporary employees), Turnover includes
RIA R 48 E R B R (R o voluntary resignation or retirement and termination.
(e Health and Safety
BREMEEB2.1 kB2.2 KPI B2.1 and B2.2
REERA - REBEREBREMENE During the reporting period, the Group was not
RIEREZ 2 EE AR LR MEAEE aware of any material non-compliance with health
EEEAZENERL RBE=F (& and safety-related laws and regulations that would
BHREFE) OEEAETIERRANL have a significant impact on the Group. There was
TEH o I RIREHABERTS no work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
kRN I=E past three years including the reporting year. In

addition, there was no lost day due to work injury
during the reporting period.
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BAREARER (&)

b) #& (&)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)
b) Social (continued)
EERE (&) Quantitative disclosure (continued)

R KIEF Development and Training

RIEHA - AEEE THE NG
BlEE TR ¢ 3 UM

The statistic figures of employee development and
training during the reporting period for the Group

BARAMIEEB3.1 X B3.2
KPI B3.1 and B3.2

BEMREINZINETESL

were as follows:

The percentage of employees trained by gender

[==]

> Male 89.7%
z Female 92.2%
REBRERESN The percentage of employees trained by

ZIEIESHE employee category

BBk A Assistant Manager and above 92.8%
BEREE Staff and supervisor 91.3%
TA Worker 90.7%
R Bl 5 B F g The average training hours completed per NEE
SERZHIFE employee by gender Hours
B2 Male 25.4
b8 Female 326
REBERESN The average training hours completed per N
FIYTERZINRE employee by employee category Hours
B4k A Assistant Manager and above 10.6
BEREE Staff and supervisor 11.8
TA Worker 34.6

70 FTREMREESRAT 2021 FF



BiR - HERERREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BAREARER (&)

b)

e (&)

EEWRE (&)

BT %R

BARENIEEB4.1 K B4.2

RBEIR  NREBRBIRERERE
T Kogdls THEEEER (B1FET
RRCEARERN) K EFBIEFD)
BB ©

e E IR

RBEHA - AEBE %A 493 H HE
B REAS T

ERENERBS.1
KPI B5.1

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)

b) Social (continued)

Quantitative disclosure (continued)

Labour Standards

KPI B4.1 & B4.2

During the reporting period, the Group has
not identified material non-compliance of child
and forced labour-related laws and regulations
(including but not limited to Employment of Children
Regulations and Employment Ordinance).

Supply Chain Management

During the reporting period, there were 493
suppliers, the breakdown by region was as follows:

B B8 S NMEEBEE  Number of suppliers by geographical region

BB Hong Kong 169

A i Mainland 204

JEEM North America 23

BOM Europe 35

oM E At b [ Rest of Asia 62
B

Total: 493
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BAREARER (&)
b) & (&)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)

b) Social (continued)

R EMIEEB6.1 X B6.2

RIEHA - AERBERER R ADBEM
ERMEBARERNENF - BHEEM Y
RLZEREFEEHMEADNEERD
HEEmR -

RESF

BRENERBT

RBEHA - AEEL NG E A
NRAIRHEBTHEEEEITHARRMT ©
HERIE

ERENIERBS8.2

RREHAN - AEBBBLHLEEE
B A RE#) B 5 496,000 7T © BLFE [RS8
HMAZMN[ERAETH] (EHZES
B SBEIHLERESE -

T8 T _F=A=-+=H
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Quantitative disclosure (continued)
Product Responsibility
KPI B6.1 and B6.2

During the reporting period, there was no incident
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified and awared by the Group. No products
sold or shipped was subjected to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

Anti-corruption
KPI B7.1

The Group was not aware of any concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Company or its employees during the reporting
period.

Community Investment
KPI B8.2

During the reporting period, the Group donated a
total of approximately HK$496,000 by participating
in community activities, including making charitable
donations to “Lingnan Entrepreneurship Initiative”
of Lingnan University, supporting voluntary social
services, etc.

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company has complied with the
code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) which is applicable for the financial
year of 2021, except that (a) the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are occupied by the same
person, which deviates from code provision A.2.1;
(b) none of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors is appointed for a specific term but every
Director is now subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
which deviates from code provision A.4.1; (c) the
Company did not have a Nomination Committee until it
was established on 29 December 2021, which deviates
from code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4.

During the year of 2021, the Board had reviewed and,
if required, made necessary changes to the corporate
governance practices of the Company in order to ensure
continued compliance with the CG Code. Details are
disclosed in this Corporate Governance Report.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 73



74

TRERBES
Corporate Governance Report

EEZEBRS

NN R B A TR B 8%+ FrE = EeT
ANBEFETES XS NIZESTA ([1ZEST
Al - &M BEFEAREHNE  MEE
EERRREBE_E_—F+=_A=1+—H
IFFERNEETIRESTRIFTEH ZRTE ©

EXERTHRERS

EXECHB DRBTESSHEZSEH
BE-REBEFE EFSTIBZAEHELE
KA BBEBAINEELARARZHMEK
REBRR EFEERLAIWIERER
HIEAN S EREE RBOR - LEERES - F
BENMHEE  FERE F2REBFRE -
HEFBENERAE  #EBBALRER
EREEAZEE  UREHREZERER
ZEE  KUEFEE 2B BHE
XERRMFEENEREE AR

ARBIEKRLITHEES  ZEEREES
BY—R#ES] UWRBRARARZITHREES
2E HHEHRLDAREBEBTESSREZER
BEAZEERI - TREZEERBRRH
TEFEAK  DRIREIREE (THREER
SIFE) EBHLL  RFESL - KB
SEENBREREL -

FTREREBERAT 2021 F1

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board is
mainly responsible for formulating corporate strategies,
approving business plans and supervising the
Company’s financial and management performance.
Matters which may be discussed in Board meetings
include the formulation of the Group’s strategies
and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, annual budgets,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital commitments;
approval of matters relating to the Company’s
constitution and share capital, and change of board
members and auditors; establishment of board
committees; review of corporate governance and the
maintenance of appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises five Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the Administrative
Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel, Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund and Mr.
Chan Wai Ming, Hermes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Administrative Committee also delegates specific
tasks to the management, which includes the preparation
of accounts; implementation of strategies and policies
approved by the Board; day-to-day monitoring of
budgets; implementation of specific business and work
projects; implementation of corporate governance, risk
management and internal control procedures and other
compliance matters. Management presents reports to
the Administrative Committee (and other delegated
Board Committee) for its review and guidance whenever
necessary.

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimise the risk of
unauthorised or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorised to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 20 to 24 of this Annual Report.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 75



76

ERERREE

Corporate Governance Report

EFERTHREES (#)

EFEEER T —FROORKEHEE
FRANEBERITR) - UFwmARRZ
BERE K%L MBRE  REBEK - &
BT R AEPEEIE RS BEERBRIUK
EEHMEE -

ZNREEeTHEENARR T - —F
BRBFAGZEEHFEXRWT :

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2021
at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the
overall strategy, operation, financial performance,
dividend policy, risk management and internal control
systems, corporate governance practices and Directors’
remuneration.

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular Board
meetings and the 2021 annual general meeting of the
Company was as follows:

EEegRtER
Attendance at
Board meetings

BRASHER
Attendance at
general meeting

BITES Executive Directors
FRRKREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4/4 1/1
(Ifﬁ%fﬁﬁ? CE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

BEHAa+t Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 1/1
fﬁ%%ﬁﬁi Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1
mE@ﬁf‘&E Mr. Wan Man Keung 1/1 1/1

(RZFZ—FNHA—HRF) (retired on 1 June 2021)
AE K B S A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1
ﬁf:pﬂﬂf‘ﬁi Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 3/3 1/1
(RZFZ—FmMH—HEZT) (appointed on 1 April 2021)
BYkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREB LT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 1/1
BEFEAET Dr. Yu Sun Say 4/4 1/1
BEXEBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 1/1
SR AR S A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 4/4 1/1
Br EXCRratE SN - RER - IR B HMESE  Save as mentioned above, the Chairman held a separate

HEZT TREBYIFNTEERINETT

B—IXEG® -
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meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is supplied
with all necessary information to enable it to consider
the matters to be discussed. A formal agenda is
followed in all Board meetings. All business transacted
at the Board meetings is documented in the minutes of
such meeting. Some Board decisions are made by way
of written resolutions of all Directors. All Board members
have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. If necessary, Directors also have access
to external professional advice at the expense of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.
The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
record of training received during the year of 2021. The
means of such training are as follows:

EINF R Means of Training
HITES Executive Directors
TAERAE BM@EMA  Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben reading material
(F/EFTHARE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
TEHz+ BsEME Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada reading material
BRFERE L Bl Kl Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel reading material
R M@EMA  Mr. Wan Man Keung reading material
(R=ZF=—14F (retired on 1 June 2021)
SNH—HRIE)
BESK B A4 BEMA  Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund reading material
BRIBAA S 4 44 F5EshEREF, Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes e-training/
(R=—F=—%F BEME R EE (appointed on 1 April 2021) induction training/

A —HEZT)

BYFHITES
FHREBL

BHRAB L

EREELE

RSHEEE

mamee

GE- i -

A8 LEED BIEM KL
Haa B AR ERE
B

BIEM BRI &

e, BEMR
BRI Bsmae,/
T

L R
BIEM H BRI e

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Yu Sun Say

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David

reading material/
webcast/webinar

briefing/conference/
e-training/

reading material/
seminar/video/
webcast/webinar/

reading material/
webinar

forum/reading material/
training programme/
webinar/workshop

e-training/forum/
reading material/
webinar

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(a) Both positions require in-depth knowledge and
considerable experience of the Group’s business.
Candidates with the suitable knowledge, experience
and leadership are difficult to find both within
and outside the Group. If either of the positions is
occupied by an unqualified person, the Group’s
performance could be gravely compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors
can provide an effective check and balance
mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent Non-
executive Directors comprise a good mix of industrial,
technology, financial and legal expertise to advise the
Board and the management team on strategy formulation
and other financial or regulatory requirements. Pursuant
to the requirement in the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has provided an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors as independent.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, every Director of the Company is now
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-
law 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Alfred Donald
Yap, and one Executive Director, namely Dr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has
been adopted by the Remuneration Committee under
which the Remuneration Committee shall perform an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve Executive Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and making
recommendations on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting and passed
resolutions to review and consider the remuneration
packages of the Directors (including the newly
appointed Director) and senior management for
recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
members at this meeting was as follows:

HER
Attendance
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEABLT (£E) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 1/1
BEXREBERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HITES Executive Director
PRI T Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1

FTREREBERAT 2021 F1
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FMZEEE (&) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

RRBZHMNBR TR LT @EFSENEER  The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish

BN RS BB MY EREMKIN#E  and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of

BAEEEK EE2MEIIRIESES  remuneration to attract, retain and motivate employees

FEAENEZERLEE N - HERARQF  to run the Group successfully. The emoluments of

CEE ARRQBZHMNEE RTHERIE Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort

EAE o required from each Director, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy
and market benchmark.

REEERIRERZES NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

BT SMEET E AR BIMFT AR RIS 3.27A1%  Recently, a new rule 3.27A of the amended Listing Rules

MERYIRZZEE HW -T2 - —F—F mandating establishment of a Nomination Committee
—BER - become effective on 1 January 2022.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Prior to the introduction of the new rule 3.27A, the
Company did not establish a Nomination Committee
in view that the Board itself shall discharge all duties
expected to be dealt with by a Nomination Committee.
In addition, the Policy and Procedure for Nomination
of Directors have been set out in writing and adopted
by the Board to serve as a guideline in order to ensure
that there is a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors with
suitable experience and capabilities to maintain
and improve the competitiveness of the Company.
According to the Policy, where a need is identified
and arises for the appointment of a new Director to
the Board, a list of potential candidates should be
complied based on recommendations from existing
Board members, management team, other individuals
who know the candidates and, if it deems appropriate,
a professional search firm. The Board shall conduct an
initial evaluation of the potential candidates based on
the character, integrity, commitment, knowledge and
ability, accomplishment in his own field, professional or
personal reputation, particular experience or expertise
relevant to the current needs of the Board, and in case
of a new Independent Director candidate, whether
he would be considered as independent. Adequate
consideration should also be given to the diversity
perspectives under the Board Diversity Policy. The
Board shall then select and recommend one or more
candidates for interview. Lastly, the best available
candidate shall be recommended for consideration by
the Board as a whole.
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REEERREZEEE (H) NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

REBEE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
N BEEMA TOEEARBERTR  #f  has reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
EETREREEANITES  WEEER  governance; approve the appointment of Mr. Chan Wai
KERAFAKS FIRBEAARZARIMEIERE Ming, Hermes as Executive Director; and considered
CHERTIEE AR  c NAFELRIT I the eligibility of those retiring Directors to be re-elected
REETEET MABBHBIERES 2 at the annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws
£H- of the Company. Amongst the four Board meetings held
during the year, two were related to matters concerning
nomination of Directors.
ZMAEEESHRILFROT The attendance of the Directors at these two Board
meetings was as follows:

HER
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
FRREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 2/2
(EEFHITEARZL) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
TEHL Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
fRFEE1E £ Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
R SR ST Mr. Wan Man Keung 11
(R=ZFZ—FNA—HREF) (retired on 1 June 2021)
BEOKIBSCAE Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
PR 2 AR S A Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes 11
(R—FE——FpmA—HEZT) (appointed on 1 April 2021)
BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREBL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2
HHRAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
BERERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
R SRR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 2/2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Pursuant to the new rule 3.27A, on 29 December 2021,
the Company has established a Nomination Committee
which comprises the Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Alfred Donald Yap and Mr. Cheung
Chi Chiu, David. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board; assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. No meeting has been
held during 2021 since establishment of the Nomination
Committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors
mentioned above.

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (continued)

In accordance with the above Policy, Mr. Chan Wai Ming,
Hermes was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 April 2021.

The Board considers that considerable diversity exists in
the existing Board of the Company in terms of its broad
experience, knowledge and personal background. The
Company shall continue to maintain its Board diversity
and, when there is any vacancy to fill, to promote the
specific objective of gender and age diversity without
compromising the quality of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating, review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
has conducted an annual review of the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification,
analysis, evaluation and management of risks on an
ongoing basis. Each department under the Group is
required to own and manage its own risks. A number
of management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming its
own view on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2021 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee),
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the risk
management systems; and advising the Board on risk-
related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk
Management Committee held eight meetings to oversee
the risk management framework; assess materiality
of risks; monitor and update the Group’s risk policies;
discuss risk reports on key risks; and review the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee
members at the eight meetings was as follows:

i E =R
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
T8z (£EF) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 8/8
PRT B Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 8/8
ARk B % A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 8/8
f5E - Note:
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Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management
Committee meetings above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee met separately with the external auditors and
held two meetings to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group; discuss the
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including review of the 2020 final results and 2021
interim results of the Group; review the external auditor’s
engagement letter; recommend the re-appointment of
the external auditor; and review the accounting, financial
reporting and internal audit functions and their staffs.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
two meetings was as follows:

HE=
Attendance
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
PREJLT (F/F) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
BHRAE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
EREBERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
R E N & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BE-Z-—#+t-A=t—ALFE B
i S E TONIE AX AT 2B R A R BT D B 75
B #sImT :

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

“EE (B¥IT)

Amount (HK$)

Z 8 AR 75 Audit services 2,904,052
FEZERT Non-audit services

— MBS — tax and related services 786,614

3,690,666

EERGBEHYRBRR2EME

ERESIZHBMRERAREGE W RE
ZEETENRAFRFEIBSEI02EZ [1BIL
ZEEIRE | A -

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 95 to 102 of this Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue.

In addition, shareholders are protected by the following
procedures as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation.

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”)

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board of Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

3.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board of Directors to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM
will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not
less than ten (10) clear business days’ notice
in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot
be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

(i) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
(“AGM”") every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by
the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one (1)
week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director (continued)

4.

If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of
the Company (i) to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that
the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a
sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
of Directors sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the

BFEReHE Tl TepkE e shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
BBt the statutory requirements to all the registered

shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or
the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

E—DEAENEREREFTHEREANEF
ZXM o TRETBER AR AL -

A separate document containing the procedures for
a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board of Directors by shareholders

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that provide for
a procedure by which shareholder(s) may put forward
an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the Company.
A shareholder may, of course, at any time send their
enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors of the
Company at the following address or via the following
facsimile number or email address:

Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company
Secretary or Chairman of the Board)

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company in the year of 2021. The current Bye-
laws of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
103 to 235, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021;

the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
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i B pk K 8
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to

EREMAET -

BREGEE
Key Audit Matter

FEREh

Estimated provision for inventory

BRI ABBERN I 40) RAH 23 -
Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEER T —Fr_A-t—ARENEEAAEK388,0000007T > EE
BEERER R R R Y P S EAER - ERENEEN L -

The Group held inventory of HK$388 million as at 31 December 2021. It
consistently applies a specific provisioning methodology for slow moving
inventory based on products life cycle and inventory ageing.

AMREREHHBERRARBETAERENR TR - ARARE
RERBHRARNGFEURZZERBRURERM AN TRERER LT
EFRERHE - At FEREEREAMEREE o

We focused on auditing this area because the estimation of provision is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation
to the inventory provision is considered significant due to significant
judgements involved in identifying the inventories associated with risk of
obsolescence and slow moving and evaluating the possible utilisation of
the aged raw materials by making reference to products life cycle.

estimated provision for inventory.

AMNENTEERRET B
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ARTRTEREERBEERBEARBNABENNFERE TRBZR
R EEANRENAEERREE (AIMEEY Rl 2HHURER
ERAAEEMEINERNGRYL) (kT - AR TEREROERRAR -
We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of inventory provision estimation process and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as subjectivity and complexity and changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

AMEBEHEREERANER - Uit (HPRE) ERERAFENMLHE
R UREBESBERREFLELNIN KT  AFRERERLRE
BHA - ZAREFEEREL2ZERBRNETRERMANTRERER
BREBOBRR R CEERARER -

We examined the basis of the methodology with respect to inventory
provisions and evaluated, amongst others, the outcome of management’s
estimations in prior years, analysis and assessment made by management
with respect to slow moving and obsolete inventory to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process. We also evaluated
the assumptions and estimates applied by management to determine
the possible utilisation of aged raw materials by making reference to the
products life cycle without contradictory evidence noted.

ARE ARG ERANEERRNERY  FERA_T_—F+_A
ST-BNRERRREREETNEREREMHAERRRE -

We evaluated and tested the accuracy of the ageing profile of the inventory
used in the calculation. We performed a recalculation of the inventory
provision using the ageing profile of the inventory as at 31 December 2021
and the products life cycle determined by management.
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B oKiE
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Bk KB

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 99



BY AR S
Independent Auditor’s Report

.
pwc

BREMHET RS M BRRAEN
BE (&)

EREB(EBEFER) ETETHNARE
o RPER T ERHAE - R TERER
RERZ o AN

. %%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ“A
M HRRGAEERERRAMRR - &
SR EITETIRF AES S L@ - A

MERFTRZMEENENRE  EA
BMERER - ARRFFARES R H
ﬁ BiE - BRER ERMRL - 0E

BRAIESZ £ FbRee3IRAR
ﬁﬁ%ﬁméﬁﬁﬁﬁkmﬂx%mﬁ
BEEXIA R SA AR T B B A B KSR AR PR 9
[E & o

o THERSTHEBORNBES - ARFHE
ENENAEF BEEMNANY E5H
NEPEHINEREERER

o HEEEMRASHBENGEERIE
SEHAF AR EN SR -

100 FTREMREESRAT 2021 FF

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Bk KB

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

P E - —aF = H=+—HIFFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

—B-—fF —ETF
2021 2020
B 5E BT T BT IT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wz Revenue 5 3,256,729 3,224,636
H U A Other income 6 16,806 21,326
BN M RERSIFE 2 8E  Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress (65,249) (85,593)
Fr{se A 2 IR OB #E o Raw materials and consumables used (2,344,085) (2,345,590)
RBEENRX Employee benefit expenses 7 (485,674) (443,807)
e Depreciation 8 (76,437) (70,921)
EfbEeEs Other operating expenses 8 (175,987) (169,094)
Hlzs, (E518) — %% Other gains/(losses) — net 9 7,023 (50,638)
"EMERREBEES) Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 (11,700) (483,025)
PRk WERFE Y MEEE  Impairment losses of stock of
completed properties 24 - (22,940)
EUE SR 2 AR 12 (Provision)/reversal of impairment
(B&) /#m losses on trade receivables 25 (1,126) 590
HERE (B18) Operating profit/(loss) 120,300 (375,056)
BMEKA Finance income 11 17,607 18,358
&R AR Finance costs 11 (46,442) (55,650)
FEAE B & A R A Share of profit of an associate 18 3,123 949
JEIEAEMNERE, (B8) Share of profits/(losses) of joint
ventures 19 32,074 (324,231)
BATBRATRIE, (EE) Profit/(loss) before income tax 126,662 (735,630)
FiSHiF X Income tax expense 12 (37,188) (26,048)
BFTEHEFE, (EE) Profit/(loss) after income tax 89,474 (761,678)
EREEE AEML Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
i, (BR) the Company 89,474 (761,674)
IEERER Non-controlling interests - (4)
89,474 (761,678)
AATEEAEMLMEESR  Earnings/(loss) per share attributable
2R, (F58) to owners of the Company during
the year
HA Basic 14 HK$0.19 (HK$1.59)
g Diluted 14 HK$0.19 (HK$1.59)
F110E 235 B v Mt Bikim A0 EHER 2 The notes on pages 110 to 235 are an integral part of

HRER Y ©

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

R _F_—Ff+-H=+—HIFF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ECTHF
2021 2020
s BETT BT IT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FERNE (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 89,474 (761,678)
Ht2EKA : Other comprehensive income:
AJEEBEF A F AW a5 K 2 Items that may be reclassified to
IEH - consolidated income statement:
ReRBEH — FEAN Cash flow hedge - fair value gains/
BEW (E8) (losses) for the year 18,049 (22,450)
RemEHH — ERRIE Cash flow hedge — deferred income
SEFTIS AR tax recognised (2,978) 3,704
BmE RS Currency translation differences:
- A&EH ~ Group 54,097 131,184
— BN F) — Associates 182 208
B ITeEHFHERAE5 W Item that will not be reclassified
KA - subsequently to consolidated income
statement:
mARBEFAEMEEIW  Changes in fair value of financial
AMEREEANEBEEE assets at fair value through other
E2)| comprehensive income 21 2,686 507
FEHME2EKBA - 2%  Other comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax 72,036 113,153
FEEZHEWA (BB) #% Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 161,510 (648,525)
FE4E - Attributable to:
PN/NEIEZZEWN Owners of the Company 161,510 (648,521)
FEFER M 2 Non-controlling interests - (4)
FERXHEBA (E8) #% Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year 161,510 (648,525)

F1102 235 B 2 MitE A%GAMEHMER 2  The notes on pages 110 to 235 are an integral part of
AARER S © these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BE—ZF-——4F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2021

—E-—fF —E_TF
2021 2020
B 5E BETT BT IT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
ME - R MRE Property, plant and equipment 15 219,598 249,956
B Investment properties 16 2,041,508 2,052,585
FREEE Right-of-use assets 17 131,935 110,176
Bt N AIMIRE Investments in associates 18 26,583 25,719
S ENER Interests in joint ventures 19 2,141,455 2,148,651
BARBEFAEMER Financial assets at fair value through
AR ERLE E other comprehensive income 21 15,470 7,454
RIEFTIETREE Deferred income tax assets 22 21,807 27,301
=14 REMEIBRRR Deposits and other receivables 26 20,035 12,107
ZRHIRE Restricted cash 27 - 2,981
4,618,391 4,636,930
REEE Current assets
=7E Inventories 23 388,487 313,566
BEERYERFE Stock of completed properties 24 213,410 213,410
FEWE 5 R Trade receivables 25 1,003,075 912,141
YafEIE - ST RHEMEYW  Prepayments, deposits and other
AR X receivables 26 107,082 89,366
BARBEFAEMER Financial assets at fair value through
WAREREE other comprehensive income 21 53 28
g H R Uk Bl P 5 HR Current income tax recoverable 1,883 1,372
2R HIE Restricted cash 27 136,320 -
HHISRITER Short-term bank deposits 27 877,757 738,916
ReRBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 27 400,818 680,202
3,128,885 2,949,001
HmEE Total assets 7,747,276 7,585,931

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 105



IT _\éﬂjﬁﬂﬁsﬂri
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BFEr—F-——F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2021

—E-—fF —E_TF
2021 2020
B 5E BETT BEET T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e EQUITY
BENANREEAZREZ  Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
% Share capital 32 47,848 47,848
Hitl# % Other reserves 33 673,305 598,884
RE & Retained earnings 33
— BRI S - Proposed dividend 11,963 9,570
— Efth - Others 3,745,421 3,677,472
 Rs Total equity 4,478,537 4,333,774
=N LIABILITIES
kREBAE Non-current liabilities
eI A Derivative financial instruments 28 - 26,592
st B R R HMEMIRK Accruals and other payables 30 5,788 11,290
HEARE Lease liabilities 17 26,312 27,946
BIEPEHBE Deferred income tax liabilities 22 71,809 70,136
g% Borrowings 31 1,301,554 1,184,662
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,405,463 1,320,626
RBER Current liabilities
BB SRR Trade payables 29 658,995 668,278
PTEESRT A Derivative financial instruments 28 8,543 -
EstERA R EMEMIER Accruals and other payables 30 229,082 192,077
EHEE Contract liabilities 5 126,291 164,190
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 20,804 5,147
EHMEHAE Current income tax liabilities 45,397 47 831
8% Borrowings 31 774,164 854,008
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,863,276 1,931,531
wem  Total liabilites 3,268,739 3,252,157
HEEREE Total equity and liabilities 7,747,276 7,585,931

BAYBBREN T -__F=A=-+=H The consolidated financial statements were approved
EEEESH ERKEETNZ  WH T EENR  and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

rEE 23 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
T B FTEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
TEFITHAAZ o Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director

FI10E 235 B 2Nt AZF A%z 2 The notes on pages 110 to 235 are an integral part of
HRE S © these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

R _F_—Ff+-H=+—HIFF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2021
/NCIE 2 N2
Attributable to owners of the Company
BB RinaE Hiof#E ez Bat
Non-
Share Share Other  controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(f3E32)  (W9EE33)  (F#7E33)  (F#sE33)
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33)
BT BT BB BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-ZF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 47,848 153,025 4,805,347 4 5,006,224
ETON Comprehensive income
FEEE Loss for the year - - (761,674) (4)  (761,678)
Hitt2EKA Other comprehensive income
BRAREEFAEMZERA Changes in fair value of financial
NeRMEELANBELZE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 507 - 507
BERmEESR Currency translation differences - - 131,392 - 131,392
Bemgh — £E A (E(E Cash flow hedge - fair value losses
=] for the year - - (22,450) - (22,450)
BeRetth — BHAELA Cash flow hedge - deferred income
E% tax recognised - - 3,704 - 3,704
ApREUARE  Total other comprehensiveincome o . S 113158 o 113158
PEMRAR  Totlcomprehensiveloss - o (64852]) (4)___(648,525)
BEFAZRS Transactions with owners
ERNEAREEAZKE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (23,925) - (23,925)
BERAZRHER Total transactions with owners - - (23,925) - (23,925)
WZZEZZTFE+ZA=+—H Asat31 December 2020 47,848 153,025 4,132,901 - 4333774
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE—F_——F+_-HA=+—HItF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

NNSIE 2PN Y
Attributable to owners of the Company
R [ 43 i {E Htf#E FERES Bt
Non-
Share Share Other controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(ME32)  (BHaE33)  (M#aEs3)  (F&E33)
(Note 32)  (Note33)  (Note33)  (Note 33)
BETR BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-E--5-8—-H As at 1 January 2021 47,848 153,025 4,132,901 - 4,333,774
T ON Comprehensive income
FENMEF Profit for the year - ~ 89,474 - 89,474
Hitt2EKA Other comprehensive income
BRAREEFAEMZERA Changes in fair value of financial
NeRMEELANBELZE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 2,686 - 2,686
EMHEER Currency translation differences - = 54,279 = 54,279
BenEdh — F£E A ABE Cash flow hedge - fair value gains
Wezs for the year - - 18,049 - 18,049
BeRetth — BHAELA Cash flow hedge - deferred income
B tax recognised - - (2,978) - (2,978)
Afe2EMARER  Total other comprehensive inoome § S T 703
2EUABE  Total comprehensive income - - .. 161510 - 161510
BEFAZRS Transactions with owners
ERNEAREEAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the
Company - - (16,747) - (16,747)
BEFAZRSEE  Total transactions with owners - - (16,747) - (16,747)
R=—Z=-—-&£+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2021 47,848 153,025 4,277,664 - 4,478,537

F110E 235 B Wit A%z e sk 2z The notes on pages 110 to 235 are an integral part of
HERCERS o these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEr—F——F+_-HA=+—HItF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2021

—E-—F —ETTF
2021 2020
LiEs3 BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
EETHMERERE Cash flows from operating activities
CIBELHNIRSERE Net cash generated from operations  34(a) 6,858 211,520
BREBFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (7,944) (50,385)
EIRIMR K Overseas tax paid (31,306) (24,224)
BEMSHER Hong Kong profits tax refund 26 7,564
BN ROR R Overseas tax refund 2,672 406
ERFE Interest paid (46,442) (55,650)
ZEEH (FTA) E4£ I £ Net cash (used in)/generated from
EEE operating activities (76,136) 89,231
RETHFMERERE Cash flows from investing activities
BAZE - BENMERE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (17,633) (73,884)
WS REEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets (10,464) -
HeEWE  WmENRRERS  Proceeds from disposal of property,

RIB plant and equipment 34(b) 2,308 787
EEHENEIEEEN =N Dividend received from an associate 2,441 1,500
BARBESAEMEZEIK Additional investment in financial

AN EREEFEIMNGE assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (5,474) (2,500)
BARBET AEMZEI Proceeds from investment in financial
AN RMEEMEIIE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 119 -
JE W Bt 425 ) SR IR R D> Decrease in amounts due from
associates - 14
e B 3@ 1 2 i 5 2 e U Bt = Recovery of amount due from an

NAIFE associate previously written off 7,310 _
%S EASR 1T A AN Increase in short-term bank deposits (126,411) (89,039)
SREIRS (&) R (Increase)/decrease in restricted

cash (131,422) 22,968
NI 3 Repayment from joint ventures 39,270 32,130
2 U B Interest received 17,607 18,358
RETHFANRSFE Net cash used in investing activities (222,349) (89,666)
RETEBEERE Cash flows from financing activities
(ZFEUR B SRIT & FE AN Increase in trust receipt bank loans —

— F% net 863 87,170
ERITER New bank loans 1,525,000 1,675,693
BBIRTER Repayment of bank loans (1,488,815) (1,660,379)
YN ERE Payment of lease payments (20,782) (18,134)
AT E Dividends paid (16,747) (23,925)

BEEE (FrA) E4L I £ Net cash (used in)/generated from
HEE financing activities (481) 60,425
iﬁﬁ};ﬁiﬁﬁ%{“mz Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

W) MR cash equivalents (298,966) 59,990

FzHRERBEELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 680,202 543,314
BB E R Currency translation differences 19,582 76,898
FRZBEEREEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of

the year 27 400,818 680,202

F110£2 235 B Z i AR A

B ©

MR 2 8

The notes on pages 110 to 235 are an integral part

of these consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property holding.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, No0.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

BITERBUBEREEARE (a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
& A BB Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance
REBZZEHZEUB@E These consolidated financial statements
EERBRAMBEERBE SN BE® of the Group have been prepared in
HFEB (BB BMmEE accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Al REBREUEE ([FH Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
NaEEB]) (F622F) 2 and disclosure requirements of the Hong
BHTEMRR - Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCQO”)
Cap. 622.
The preparation of financial statements in
MERFEBRBMBHREER conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
ZUBHRERERKERAETE of certain critical accounting estimates. It
Rt At MERERE also requires management to exercise its
REAAEBEZHBE 2R judgement in the process of applying the
RARITEAE - PR EH Group’s accounting policies. The areas
BT B EE RS involving a higher degree of judgement or
VB BREEERATCENRR complexity, or areas where assumptions
NAEFHE R4 55 o and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
P 5P % A< 1E 4 (b) Historical cost convention

LERAVWBRRCREE
SERRAEBH CEBEMEA
AEEFAEMEEB AT
TRMEE RAAEBERA
BRmscdRMEEREMAE
(BRETESRTE) RERE
WM (BRARBEIIR) &
1TIEIE) #R%d -
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These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on historical cost
basis, as modified by revaluation of
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ZESTHEHSE (&)

21 RREXE (&)
(c) AEBMERRAZEBITH

2= A

B-Z-—F— A —HRHA
ZHBFEREEMZRAED
ZIERTHR

2 A LEES-]

BBV BmEE A = K £
Iz - & = &£ -
BEETERIE  F B
FE BA K
B 53R 5 YR
Fa5 BB
BT RS 2R
FIHRLED
B 753 2 Al
F165: 2 &

TR

LAEFTERERRARZ
SERYEEAZE  FHMN
TEeHERIARKYHEELE
BEX®E -

TREBREEERAR 2021 F3R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c¢) Amended standards adopted by the
Group

Amendments to standards effective in
financial year beginning 1 January 2021

Standards Subject of amendment
Amendments Interest Rate
to HKFRS Benchmark Reform —
9, HKAS 39, Phase 2
HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) New and amended standards,
annual improvements, guideline and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group

New standards, amendments to
standards, annual improvements,
guideline and interpretation that have

—BRB T BFEERRE been issued but are not effective for the
W B AR R financial year beginning 1 January 2021
and have not been early adopted
BT HH
g BB Z
FEHBLENR
Effective for
annual periods
e CHIES:: beginning on or
Standards Subject of amendment after
BEMBRELRE 16582 R —FXRAZTHEZHE019EMRESREBZHESER —E-—F
BRI IR MA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 1 April 2021
2021
EEMBHRELREIR2E  BERER ===
FTIR —HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
EBGFHERIE 1658 2 &R ME -~ B KRR ==
hix —HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 January 2022
AR GFHERIE 37 5] BT EEEH =
hi —H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts 1 January 2022
FEUCEER 2 85T B \FE_Z_TEBRRFREBCE —E-F
—H—H
Amendments to Annual Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
Improvements Project
gat1E3I58 55% (KIEET) HREZESIE NS MDA —E-F
—H—H
Revised Accounting Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination 1 January 2022
Guideline 5
BBV BRELRNE 75 Rz & K RABRERT R o=
—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 RAEZE (&)
(d) &NEBEEREAHHREE

RTHVER - FEBCE - 55l
k#E (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) New and amended standards,
annual improvements, guideline and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group (continued)

FTETZER - R ZEFT AR
FELGE - Bl U RRZRER
B ER-—_ZE-_—F—A
—BABZHRFEEERE
WMERERPEHERN ()

New standards, amendments to
standards, annual improvements,
guideline and interpretation that have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021
and have not been early adopted

114

(continued)

BT HH
EAL ¥ g
FEHBEN
Effective for

annual periods

28| CHIES:: beginning on or
Standards Subject of amendment after
EEEHEAFE 1R ZEBITR HHEBRR2INEGESE o=

—HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 1

BERGETERE 1R REEY
BREEREBREZE 295
ZABETIR

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

B G ERE 8 ZIEFTIR

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB EAE 1257 2B
hiz

Amendments to HKAS 12

BEEVBWELNE 457 218
FThR
Amendments to HKFRS 4

BERBESR (ZT_TF)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

TREBREEERAR 2021 F3R)

Presentation of Financial Statements on Classification of
Liabilities

SRR ZKE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BRTARTZER

Definition of Accounting Estimates
RE-RHGEFEVEERBBREBBELENIE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
ERERHLEATEMBRELERE G 2 AR

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying
HKFRS 9

MR  (ERAH B RERBERNERNEH
EREDE

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

1 January 2023

~A-8

1 January 2023

—E-=fF
—H—H

1 January 2023
—A—H

1 January 2023
—T-=%F
—H—H

1 January 2023
—E-=fF
—A—H

1 January 2023
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21 RREXE (&)

(d) A5 H 1 R Bk A BO H7 R AR 48
RTHVER - FEBCE - 55l
k#E (&)

FTETZER - R ZEFT AR
FENE - BolIARZRER
M R —_ZBE=-_—F—A#
— BB ZCHBFEERRE
WMERERPEHERN ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) New and amended standards,
annual improvements, guideline and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group (continued)

New standards, amendments to
standards, annual improvements,
guideline and interpretation that have
been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

SRR
EAC ¥ g
FEHBENR
Effective for

annual periods

2R CHES ] beginning on or
Standards Subject of amendment after
BV BREERNFE 1057 KX WEEHEBRERNANEELE R EELNEIEE R
BREGTERE 285 218
FThi
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture

ARAREFRENERA L
A FTER] - ERHEFT R
FEUE - A RRE
ZHEHE KRRARES
#5107 B 2l R B RT A 3K
R ERANFTRT R ~ 2RI 2
[E&ThR - FE U - 355
AR 2 fE -

The Directors of the Company are in
the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new
standards, amendments to standards,
annual improvements, guideline
and interpretation. The Directors
of the Company will adopt the new
standards, amendments to standards,
annual improvements, guideline and
interpretation when they become effective.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2021,

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Subsidiaries (continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 &E (&) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) EZEgEZE (d) Equity accounting
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Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated income statement, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) Equity accounting (continued)

(e)
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The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.7.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable
to owners of the Company.



e ISR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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POLICIES (continued)

2.2 &E (&) 2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e) EERKERSH (H)

() Changes in ownership interests
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(continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in consolidated income
statement. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM?”). The Group’s senior executive
management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, is considered as the
CODM that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 HNEBRE (&)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses
including those relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised
in consolidated income statement, and
other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in consolidated income
statement and other comprehensive
income for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income respectively.



e SRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ZESTHEHSE (&)

2.4 HNEBRE (&)

(b)

(c)

Re K&K ()

FEBMEENEAE ()
WERAREEFAREZE
MEEMTREE (BT
EERTE) RARARE
B ABm 2T ABAZK
) 2 BEZENEE W
RER  ERARBEAR
LB FEBEREE
(Pl BB AREETA
HEHe2ERANSREEZ
BRAR) 2B EERE - GTAH
b2 E WA -

EEET AR

AEEE T A LR
SHEETAER (REE
2 5 1 A T R A B
B2 W) 2 £ERMBR
RoBRUT I RAEA2H
T

() SHEHREN2INE
EREME  RWE A
2R RE

(i) HFWmFx2WAREZH
REHERRE -
FHETIFZERSA
HBTEXRZBUR Y
BIEHEBRIN - TELIE
T WARTHRR
SHEBRE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)
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Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such
as financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in
consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that report;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(¢) Group companies (continued)

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. All property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15 to 40 years

Plant, machinery and 510 7 years
equipment

Furniture and fixtures 510 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the
companies in the Group.

Investment properties comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.
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Investment properties are measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers at least annually.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the
external valuers use alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
consolidated income statement), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

()

(i)
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Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
consolidated income statement or other
comprehensive income. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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(iii) & (iii) Measurement
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At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in consolidated income
statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in consolidated income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) — net,
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.8 RERHEMESRMEE (F) 2.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) 5= (&) (iii) Measurement (continued)
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The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to consolidated income
statement following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in
consolidated income statement as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in other gains/(losses) —
net in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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(continued)
(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Impairment losses
are presented in consolidated income
statement. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

210 STETER¥HESR 2.10 Derivatives and hedging activities
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in
fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives:

° hedges of a particular risk associated with
the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the
relationship between hedging instruments and
hedge items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions have
been and will continue to be highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items.
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(continued)

The fair values of various derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in Note 28. Movements in the
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity
are shown in Note 33. The full fair value of
a hedging derivative is classified as a non-
current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than
twelve months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than twelve months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.

(i) Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves
in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains/(losses) —

3

net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to consolidated income
statement in the periods when the
hedged item affects consolidated income
statement. The gain or loss relating
to the effective portion of interest rate
swaps hedging variable rate borrowings
is recognised in consolidated income
statement within ‘finance costs’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

210 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

()

(i)
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Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

The derivative instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains/(losses) —
net’.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

211 Inventories and stock of completed

properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the
completed properties.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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2 FESTTBEHE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

212 BUWEZ REMBWERR (&) 2.12 Trade and other receivables (continued)
BRIFSBEEABMEND BKE Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
SEFNFTUNEGHE2RESSE amount of consideration that is unconditional
NARBEER  NEEFERE unless they contain significant financing
WE SN ENEKRIEHE components, when they are recognised
emEWALEEAERMN XX at fair value. The Group holds the trade
NEHEKNATE - BEEASEE receivables with the objective to collect the
WE ZERARZE—FEFR contractual cash flows and therefore measures
2EME25  BEANEERERK them subsequently at amortised cost using
K2 - 28K5E3.1(b)(2) ° the effective interest method. See Note 25

for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1(b)(2) for a description of the Group'’s
impairment policies.

2BHRERREEEY 2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
HekReFZEYWREFER Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
© - RWITBAMTFF - RIHAR hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
“EAAKUTHEMEESER short-term highly liquid investments with
IR ERBITES © original maturities of three months or less, and

bank overdrafts.

214 R 2.14 Share capital
LRI AR  BEERBR Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
BATET IR D Sk B AR R 2 R IE AR Incremental costs directly attributable to the
TEER RS BFTEHRIEZRD issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in

consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
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218 IBEREN 2.18 Financial guarantee contracts
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Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
as a financial liability at the time the guarantee
is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a
third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of subsidiaries or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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2 ZESTHEHSE (&)

219 B RIELEMEH 2.19 Current and deferred income tax
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The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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219 EHARIERE TS (&) 219Current and deferred income tax
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(continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

219 EHARIERE TS (&) 219Current and deferred income tax
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(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general
defined contribution pension schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the
Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

2.22 Revenue recognition
(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the products is transferred to the
customers at a point in time, being
products are delivered to the customers,
the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

Payments received in advance that are
related to sales of goods not yet delivered
are recognised as contract liabilities and
deferred in the consolidated statement of
financial position.



e SRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTTBEHE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Wt (E) 2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) FEWKA (b) Interest income
FMEWAGEAEBEBRN R ER Interest income is recognised on a time-
BF I L 19 FE R o proportion basis using the effective

interest method.

(c) HEWA (c) Rental income
HMeWAREERBUNER Rental income is recognised on a straight-
SETERR © line basis over the lease periods.

(d) BREWA (d) Dividend income
A% B AR W ER 5 I8 B #E T Dividend income is recognised when the
HERIER o right to receive payment is established.

2.23 BT R Bh 2.23 Government grants

fied B 50 & 32 #E 5E 7K & B 1 W B IR Grants from the government are recognised

FH B R AEBEE B M5 at their fair values where there is a reasonable

- AZREAABEERBN assurance that the grant will be received

ey ° and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

B AX 7K 75 8 B BUT 0 B AR FE 2 Government grants relating to costs are

BHEBHEKNAT TR deferred and recognised in the consolidated

N - SRS WS RER - income statement over the period necessary

to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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2 FESTTBEHE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 B /B (4&) 2.23 Government grants (continued)
HEBEAYE BELREEBED Government grants relating to the purchase
X T #85 B #) 25 E 7% 3 AT K AT 465 B of property, plant and equipment are initially
ARE URERIEAZY included in liabilities as deferred government
¥ BB REZBERS D WEFTHE grants and when such property, plant and
PIRAGEENREWREE 2 TBH equipment are built or purchased, the
AE AFEIRERE N R NTER © received government grants are recognised

in consolidated income statement on a
systematic basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

224 HE 2.24 Leases
HERBEEERHAERFA Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
EOmRRERAREERARE and a corresponding liability at the date at
afE- which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

/\Z’J—Iau BEHERIFEHEAK Contracts may contain both lease and non-

c AKEIEREERIFHEE lease components. The Group allocates the
%Eﬁi%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@?%ﬁfgﬁ % & consideration in the contract to the lease and
ARESEZHERIFHEEMAK non-lease components based on their relative
oo AT A l#’_ﬂ%fﬂ/\ stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
WEMEHREMmMS - HEEEH estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
ENHEBAKE D ARBE— elected not to separate lease and non-lease
MEMAKE D  TEEMERD - components and instead accounts for these as

a single lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably

certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.
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2 FESTHHREE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

224 HE (&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
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The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease,
eg term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2 FEETHEHE (F) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
224 HE (/&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
FRBEERKATE  BFEMN Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
TRIE : comprising the following:
e MHEAENVNRGTESSE: e the amount of the initial measurement of

lease liability;

e TUTRBBEKZAIZNME e any lease payments made at or before
Al 70 &1 BB & 2 WA the commencement date less any lease
EEE incentives received:;

o [EMVIBEEAA : & e any initial direct costs; and

e (BEEMA- e  restoration costs.

FRAEEE—RREEAFEASF Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated

B HESR (UREERE) KE over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and

METENE - MAKEBESIBHE the lease term on a straight-line basis. If

ETHEBEEERE AERAESR the Group is reasonably certain to exercise

ERNHREENERFHAT a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is

LAYTE - depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful

life.

HEHE o CBEERMERER Payments associated with short-term leases of

EEMERBONRUAEZER equipment and all leases of low-value assets

AW ERERAMXT - EEA are recognised on a straight-line basis as an

ELAMHEBR T @A TH expense in consolidated income statement.

HE o Short-term leases are leases with a lease term

of twelve months or less.
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2 FESTTBEHE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

224 HE (&) 2.24 Leases (continued)
AEEEREHBEANKEEHER Lease income from operating leases where the
MEWAZEREZNHEERRNE Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
REWERER ERKEHE income statement on a straight-line basis over
EENVRBEEZEKAT AEBE the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
ENEREE - WRESER AR in obtaining an operating lease are added to
REEWAWEREERR R the carrying amount of the underlying asset
o RAEEEEREMEA and recognised as expense over the lease
REMBRRE - term on the same basis as lease income. The

respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature.

2.25 g 2.5k 2.25 Dividend distribution
MR R AR 9 K # IR SRR B Dividend distribution to the Company’s
BARNGIRRAES (RAEEH shareholders is recognised as a liability in
M) #hER R AR AR S B kAR the Group’s and the Company’s financial
NENMEHREERREE - statements in the period in which the dividends

are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
(“RMB”), United States dollars
(“US$”) and Japanese yen (“JPY").
These currencies are not the
functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries of the Group to which
these balances related. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments denominated in RMB,
US$ and JPY.

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$, JPY and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net
assets are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations on the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2020: 5%) against US$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$16,362,000 (2020 post-tax loss:
HK$34,937,000) higher/lower (2020:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses (2020:
foreign exchange gains/losses) on
translation of US$-denominated trade
receivables and payables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
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(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2020: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have
been HK$135,000 (2020 post-tax
loss: HK$7,000) lower/higher (2020:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains (2020:
foreign exchange gains/losses) on
translation of RMB-denominated
trade receivables and payables and
cash and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2020: 10%) against JPY with all
other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have
been HK$1,500 (2020 post-tax loss:
HK$421,000) higher/lower (2020:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses (2020:
foreign exchange losses/gains)
on translation of JPY-denominated
trade payables and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that changes in market
interest rates will impact cash flows
arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’s interest
bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group’s
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest rate
swaps. Generally, the Group raises
long-term borrowings at floating
rates and swaps them into fixed rates
that are lower than those available
if the Group borrowed at fixed rates
directly.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest
rate on bank borrowings had been
1% (2020: 1%) higher/lower with all
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$17,332,000 (2020 post tax loss
HK$17,023,000) lower/higher (2020:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers such as trade
receivables, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
loans to joint ventures, deposits and other
receivables. The credit risk on cash and
bank deposits is limited because the
Group mainly places the deposits in banks
with high credit rating and management
does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management

To manage credit risk, the Group has
considered the underlying security
and the long-established business
relationship with the counterparty.
The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on
credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require
collaterals from trade debtors. As at
31 December 2021, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that
the top five (2020: five) customers
account for 83% (2020: 80%) of
the Group’s total year end trade
receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in
respect of these customers is minimal
after considering the financial
position and past experience with
these customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1) AEE (&)

AEBHEMBLEBEE
(BREZRHRS A
HIRITER - BHE KR
TEEY BAREE
FRAHMEERAN S
MEE BEXRTEZDR
% Al REAEYR
R ZEERBRKEY
FIEX - T R A&
REERBRHEENZS
THRZKREE -

(2) =BMEERE

FEW B 5 BR A K BT &
Ko Eo At & WOAR SR & R A=
EEEEL -

() ENEZERN

AEERBELEY
75 5 & 2 Bl 58 9 5%
ArERHEEER
ZEAETT A > BLAR
BREWE 5K E
RERERER
Bt -

(1)

Risk management (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise,
restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loans
to joint ventures, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and deposits and
other receivables are subject the
expected credit loss model.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.
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3 MBERERE (F)

3.1 B¥EBREE (&)

(b) EEREP
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(continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables
are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. Trade receivables
have been assessed based on
credit rating of the customers,
the repayment and default
histories of different customers
and on-going business
relationship with the relevant
customers. The loss rates
are further adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic
Product index of the countries
where the customers located,
Consumer Price Index to be
the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjust the historical
loss rate based on expected
changes in these factors.
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3.1 B¥EREE (&)

(b) FERR (&)

(2) 2mEERME (8)

() ENEZRH (&)

KRB —F+=
A=+—8" &
TR AR B R 4

03% (— BT :
02%) * BHAEKE
SRR HEBRE
#9 /575 ¥ 3,100,000
T(ZE T F:
FE#81,974,0007T) ©
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HSEN A — (A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

Loss allowance in respect of the
trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$3,100,000
(2020: HK$1,974,000) based on
an average expected loss rate
of approximately 0.3% (2020:
0.2%) as at 31 December 2021.

Trade receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of
recovery includes, amongst
other, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented
as net impairment losses
within operating profit/(loss).
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
are credited against the same
line item.
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3 UHERER (&) 3
(continued)

3.1 MEEBER (&)
(b) FERE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) ©RMEERE (8) (2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i) FEKEZH (E) (i) Trade receivables (continued)
R-ZE-—Fk= The movement of loss allowance
T-_TF+=H for trade receivables as at 31
=+—H: ' EKZ December 2021 and 2020 are as
SR E B follows:

M
—E-—F —E-ETF
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
H— A — B8 EI¥E 1B Opening loss allowance on 1 January (1,974) (2,564)
BB RS (38hn) /#M@  (Increase in)/reversal of loss allowance (1,126) 590
Rt+-—A=+—88/ Closing loss allowance at 31 December
B ES 1B S (3,100) (1,974)
R E 5 R FOR(E Provision of impairment losses
BREBEHBE on trade receivables amounted
1,126,0007C ( — to approximately HK$1,126,000
TTF - EKE (2020: reversal of impairment
2 B FOR B B 18 1 losses on trade receivables

[B] 4 7% % 590,000
L) BRESE W
m&RA
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amounted to approximately
HK$590,000) is included in the
consolidated income statement.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) aRMEERE (&) (2) Impairment of financial assets

(i) WABEHK AR

(continued)

(il Other financial assets at

Hith @ EE

VABE SH R AR DI B 2
HiteMEES®
BE & & E A JE
Wi AR R A e L e
NGRS
ERXPHFHHE
SLEORARER
FBonE - B
BRR  ZEHH
MEEER A T5H
ERR I RBEEIR
N e BB TH AR
BT —EAEHGE
EEEEE 28
PR e

BERELREF
BY  EHRTEF
RN R B3R 2 TR
R8T B B W% R
& 7 B 26 9 57 MR
BRE  BEH
B R (B &5 18 IE T
BEX-

amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include deposits and other
receivables. Management
considers that the credit risk of
these balances has not increased
significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current
financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on
the twelve months expected credit
losses which was immaterial.

While cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 UHERER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 B¥EBREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) REESRR (c) Liquidity risk

164
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Hh-BFZZERREBEER
BENMRFESHEAN -

AEEZHEATEHERA

NBESTE BEETE
EEARHETRETHH
® UEREARZHRSH
e FERERNBER

REREBFE2cREBENESD
FOR - NN R B R RER
HESFE o

TRERAEEIETES R
BERBEHRZHBTAELY
FH - HREBERFTBEBES R
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B) REEBRERFTE ZF
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FEH - ARE+TZM@AR
FHER B EYTE
R MZENHEBRERE
BRMEE -
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Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit
facilities. The Directors aim to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements, its compliance
with lending covenants and its relationship
with its bankers to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balances due
within twelve months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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3 MBERERE (F)

3.1 B¥EREE (&)

(c)

nBEEER (&)

BREOIIRERAERD
RFHIE (BERATTEHE
I {5 1 7 ) B SRR B AR 50D
MR E MR o M RITER
2B B AT TR IR TR E R
RHIZ -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The maturity analysis for other
bank borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.

RSN
Maturity Analysis
1FEAFE
EREER 122% 2E5F  5FHE By
Less than

1yearor Between Between
repayable 1and 2 2and5 Over 5
on demand years years years Total
BT ABTr  BE%Tx A%t AETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

"E Consolidated

NZZE-_TF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020
ERE SRR Trade payables 668,278 - - - 668,278
EFTER R EMEMERR Accruals and other payables 192,077 11,290 - - 203,367
HEBE Lease liabilities 6,952 5,035 9,436 25,046 46,469
EAUBETER Trust receipt bank loan 325,780 - - - 325,780
HiRTER Other bank borrowings 550,271 450,072 762,580 - 1,762,923

1,743,358 466,397 772,016 25,046 3,006,817

R=-B=-—-f%+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2021

ERE SRR Trade payables 658,995 - - - 658,995
[EATE B R EMEARR Accruals and other payables 229,082 5,788 - - 234,870
HEAR Lease liabilities 22,499 4,590 9,448 22,045 58,582
ERBERITER Trust receipt bank loan 326,673 - - - 326,673
HRITER Other bank borrowings 467,350 502,135 828,049 - 1,797,534

1,704,599 512,513 837,497 22,045 3,076,654
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3 UHERER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.2 EXEER 3.2 Capital risk management

AEBENESERBREERARLN
SEEFELE  BEBERRRIER
RS E MR E SR
i FEERRIENERNGERE N
BUEE B o

REFLABENERE  ~&H
AREEREIN TRRAORE S
BMRRE@MER - BITHR
P & & B AR R AR -

HEMREX - NEEAFE
ERELREREEEANE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of net

o LU RIRFREBERABES
AEFREREERNEER
BERXREES  EHRITER
ERERREFEWAE -

gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and lease
liabilities less restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

—E--F —TTHE

2021 2020

BET T BEET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BB Total borrowings 2,075,718 2,038,670
HEAE Lease liabilities 47,116 33,093
2,122,834 2,071,763

ZRHIRE Restricted cash 136,320 2,981
5HRITER Short-term bank deposits 877,757 738,916
HeRIRESEED Cash and cash equivalents 400,818 680,202
1,414,895 1,422,099

FEE Net debt 707,939 649,664
e Total equity 4,478,537 4,333,774
BEEHARKRLE Net debt to total equity ratio 16% 15%

KREBR -_ZT=-—&+ = A
St HBZFREBEERELER
16% (— BT : 15%) o F&
ERBELXRENTHRNEER R
HEAEBMAE -

The Group’s net gearing ratio was 16% (2020:
15%) as at 31 December 2021. The increase
in net gearing ratio was due to increase in total
borrowings and lease liabilities.
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3 MBERERE (F)

3.3
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~ R EEMGE

TW%Q&E&E%Z nEE
HEMRE(EARS
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o XRHIEE

o  HEHIRITEX

o WMENAELFEWY

o ERNEZREMEMNER

e THEAE

o IRITEX
TREFIIAGEEAERLAAE
BIEZERIEST - TR
WZEHRWT -

e TAHREBEEXABGEEERM
BIRE CREFARE) (B1H) -

o BRFIMFTROHEN - B
BEXBEAER (AER) %
B (BB ERMRT) BEMR
ws2H(F240) -

e UFERABEMBHHE
(BEBR2H) 2EEXE
B2 (F34) -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The fair value of the following financial assets

and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

Trade and other receivables
e Restricted cash

e  Short-term bank deposits

° Cash and cash equivalents
e Trade and other payables

° Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3 MBERERE (F) 3

N\,

3.3 AAREEMF (&)
TREINAKEER_ZE_FF
+—A=t+—HEAAREBEFE
ZEERBE -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 December 2020.

FA1HK FoMm FEI 4a%E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BEEFIT BEETFIT BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BAREBEFAEMD Financial assets at fair
2ERANSREE value through other
comprehensive income 42 - 7,440 7,482
=L Liabilities
TTESRT A Derivative financial
instruments - 26,592 - 26,592
TREINAEBR T - —F The following table presents the Group’s assets
+ - A=+—HEAAEBET=E and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
ZEENRAE - 31 December 2021.
F14 28k EIRK #zE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
BAREEFAELMD Financial assets at fair
ZHBANEHEE value through other
comprehensive income 70 - 15,453 15,523
=L Liabilities
TTES T E Derivative financial
instruments - 8,543 - 8,543

FRN- FIF - F2RMMREIRZ
MY EeE -

FR - HERDAELBES -

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

There were no other changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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3 UHERER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 AREEME (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a) FE1hEmIT A (a) Financial instruments in Level 1
EERBMBEENERIA The fair value of financial instruments
ZANEBEREREENT traded in active markets is based on
HBWESR - MEZWER S quoted market prices at the reporting
EERETHERXRZFF &H date. A market is regarded as active if
R TEER - RE quoted prices are readily and regularly
R 753k B B MR ETS - T % available from an exchange, dealer,
EHRERMERRTEHER broker, industry group, pricing service,
FIRAET MBS Al or regulatory agency, and those prices
ZMBAARERME - A% represent actual and regularly occurring
ERFAENE/EENT SR market transactions on an arm’s length
BRERESEE ZFIH basis. The quoted market price used for
FFAFE 14 - financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.
(b) FE24¢WMTE (b) Financial instruments in Level 2

WHERRTIZEENE B
TA (FIansgsMTETA) 1
NRABELERBEERDGE
E e REFhERDEEER
ARG ZABREMSHE
WEAI LR DK B BT
BEt- M ITARAREBEZE
MAFTERS2EG B
Az TEFFAR 24 -

F2RTEER T EABREF
K HARBEDERS
HERDEE - %FHER
HESERAREZABE
35 BRI 3% A] sE R A K
BERREMET
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The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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3 MBEKRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AAEEME (F&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) #£3&smTAH (c) Financial instruments in Level 3
i —IBRZIHE RN I If one or more of the significant inputs is
ERAEEMSE8E - AT not based on observable market data, the
BEt AE 34 ° instrument is included in Level 3.
TEREER T —F+= The following table summarises the fair
A=+—HBERZZF=ZF value and quantitative information about
+ZA=+—HARFELT the significant unobservable inputs used
FLEREEERERBZES in Level 3 fair value measurements of
BAREBEAEMANAA investments in unlisted private investment
BEREXNBELHEZ28H fund and entities as at 31 December 2021
EEEHR and 31 December 2020:
BEAEE BEBESHHE
it B2y MABEEZRAR
Relationship
of
Significant unobservable
—E-—F —Z T4 unobservable inputs to fair
Description 2021 2020 inputs value
BETT BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FLETLEREES 9,979 7,440 THIRGER XSEBRHES
AREEES
Unlisted private investment fund Recent The higher the
transaction transaction
prices prices, the
higher the fair
value
RIELTREBEBIRRKRE 5,474 - TEERRE)  TEEIERBIEA
NABEBE
Equity investments in unlisted private Expected The higher
entities volatility  the expected
volatility, the
lower the fair
value
15,453 7,440
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3 MBEKRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEME (F&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) #3kemITH (&) (c) Financial instruments in Level 3
(continued)
TREVINFAEIRITAZ The following table presents the changes
2 in Level 3 instruments for the year:
B —E-FTHF
2021 2020
B¥ETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHHEH Opening balance 7,440 4,319
0 Addition 5,474 2,500
AR E Refund of capital (119) _
BAREESAEMEEWA Changes in fair value of financial assets at
MeRIEEAAEBEED fair value through other comprehensive
income 2,658 621
FRAEER Closing balance 15,453 7,440

4 EXREEHEETRHE

EEt RA M AR BTG - LERBE
ERBLEMEAER  BRKEER
BRBEBRAREHNEEERY -

AEBERRKEL G ERE - E
TR A ERERESHEEH
ERERTE BN —UWBFEAR
BEXRREE  EREELEBEREE
AR ERAEN G RERER
T e

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.
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4 EARESFHEFTRAE (F)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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B °
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EMEECERBEIREED
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BHif ERABEBR  REXF K
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FERMEEZRE

47 27 B 4 SR B L R 3
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in
the periods in which such estimate has been
changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.
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4 BEARGFHEETRHE (F) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) *kEREEZRME ()

(¢) Impairment of non-financial assets

(d)

EEEAYHEERSSRE L
HEFH (\REEEETRER
TEBEEEEREXIREZ
B4 ()R B RE (RRER
FREFRAEEMBITANEE
BEHEKAIARARREREFR
B(UREEAE)) ERERZ
HEEZREE K (i) RRERHE
CREBAISERBENEER
FPEREEHRAEEMNENER
ZERSRETER -

WEREITEAEZ BRAE (£
ERS R EEARRAZ ARE
SHEEEBR) LT EAEN
SAERNFRE  ANYEA
EEH IR RSB -

REWMEZIAEE

BREMEZHEDREEENE
AhERE MR R [ MR MEER]
T-BRAMESFFHAERM
B - REERNBBMS
ARZAIELEBEERS -

(continued)

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-
annually by qualified valuers by considering
comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 173



174

e ISR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(e)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Fair value of investment properties

(e)

(continued)

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.
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4 EARESFHEFTRAE (F)

(f) FBEHRELEMREH

RER BN % (6 7R HE & 2B SR A
B  REERS WA ESHEER
BERERAE - AR EKBRE
TEZRXZAFEBEELFR
DRETIA R THE - NEBR
B R B A MERINR IR M I
REFABRBEEREEZAB -~
BRFEICHARBEREN S
AERRERR  ZEZBRKFEE
EEBBBEME 2 AFHLET
PRI R

e BB R SEE MR AR
FERBFBA A MR ERK
MIEEEE 2 RIERY M
ETHRREEZEZEECHBEEN
HMIAEE - BEMSHEBER
THEACREMRELERMG - LK
BRZEEREHREEERIE
EMEHABEAERERSER
RZzBE (KOEH) BEE - WER
BRARREMGFTAR  ZEEHK
FEMGEPHEEERIEER
ERFEH s 2 FER o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
required. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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oEER

AEBZERTHREEERBEA/ATES
BRRE ([XTBL2ERKE]) - AL
B Ao AW E R & ERPT

%%%&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ% ([EMS]) — REMSEE
%U fﬁ%%%uu °

MERE — WEERR  HELHEE -

TR2EERRETHEAANEERR N
HAFHRE - AFHERBEDEEIR °
TREERRERBDBREZFTERFN
HEENBRR - Lt EEEBEARN
BREMUA - Efhlias, (B1E) — %
B BERA — FENMEGEBEAR
MEzEENEaR  ETEREER
ANEHX - AEBEERARERMZ
HAERHR AR & IS HRAFE T = —
ﬁ%u‘l’% °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM?”). The Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) —
manufacture and distribution of electronic products
for EMS customers.

Property Holding — development, sale and lease of
properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other gains/(losses)
— net, finance costs — net and share of profit of an
associate but excludes corporate and unallocated
expenses. Other information provided to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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5 ZEEFR (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

MERE
EMS Z8F9 il s
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BET T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE—_T-—-F+=-AH For the year ended
=+—HLEEE 31 December 2021
H oM External revenue
P& #HWE Revenue from contracts with
customers
L 2 B R B i Timing of revenue recognition
— EE—E — At a point of time 3,192,699 - 3,192,699
U 25 2ROR Revenue from other sources
— HeKRA - Rental income - 64,030 64,030
3,192,699 64,030 3,256,729
DEEE Segment results 82,116 66,504 148,620
e Depreciation 74,155 42 74,197
E(ha & hEFHE Share of profits of joint ventures — 32,074 32,074
EMEAABEED Change in fair value of investment
properties - (11,700) (11,700)
=¥NERT Capital expenditure 17,620 13 17,633
MERE
EMS & ! R
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BET T BT BET I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEr—_ZT-_ZTFE+_-A For the year ended
= t—HLEFEE 31 December 2020
H oM External revenue
BEA O Revenue from contracts with
customers
Ui 225 T SR PR ] Timing of revenue recognition
— R — At a point of time 3,157,160 - 3,157,160
U 55 2ROR Revenue from other sources
— e WA — Rental income - 67,476 67,476
3,157,160 67,476 3,224,636
DEBEELE Segment results 132,811 (780,147)  (647,336)
e Depreciation 68,511 41 68,552
EliEEaEhEER Share of losses of joint ventures - (324,231) (324,231)
WEMEABEES Change in fair value of investment
properties - (483,025)  (483,025)
NG Capital expenditure 73,884 - 73,884
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5 ZEEFR (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
MESH
EMS 3P Eil! R
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total

BETT RB¥TR  BETR
HK$°000  HK$’000  HK$°000

R-ZB=-—-%+=A As at 31 December 2021
=+-n
DEEE Segment assets 3,184,951 2,269,129 5,454,080
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,141,455 2,141,455
A2, BEELE Total reportable segment assets 3,184,951 4,410,584 7,595,535
MERS
EMS #BFT #BFT #aza
Property
EMS Holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT _TF+_H As at 31 December 2020
=+-n
DEE E Segment assets 3,005,529 2,280,684 5,286,213
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures — 2148651 2,148,651
A 2D EEELRE Total reportable segment assets 3,005,529 4,429,335 7,434,864
DEEETEEREME  BELEE Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
KREMZE - ERAEEE 20 FNE and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
@m XRFIRE  FE  EXEKMEF use assets, interests in joint ventures, restricted
E EBRESEFR BAFE G2 cash, inventories, stock of completed properties,
NEAMBWERR - RERTHERER S trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
MEeEEY EMEREEA7NE receivables, short-term bank deposits and cash
B BRAABEFARMEEKRANS and cash equivalents, but exclude investments in
BEE  RIEMSHEE - B KE associates, financial assets at fair value through
FIEM R EERRDBLEE ° other comprehensive income, deferred income

tax assets, current income tax recoverable and
corporate and unallocated assets.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

MEMmMDMEEHERABHATFE A reconciliation of reportable segment results
(E518) 2 BRI - to profit/(loss) before income tax is provided as
follows:

—E-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

2| WEE Reportable segment results 148,620 (647,336)
HAb U A Other income 16,806 21,326
Hitlezs, (B518) — F%  Other gains/(losses) — net 7,023 (50,638)
BERA — JFE Finance costs — net (28,835) (37,292)
FEAE B 2 N R F)E Share of profit of an associate 3,123 949
PERRDEMX Corporate and unallocated expenses (20,075) (22,639)
MRETEHATRIE, (BE) Profit/(loss) before income tax 126,662 (735,630)
AI2MOAEEEBPEE 2 HERAOT ¢ Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total

assets as follows:

—E-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

AE2/RPPBEE Reportable segment assets 7,595,535 7,434,864
Bt N AR E Investments in associates 26,583 25,719

RARBEFAEMEEUKA Financial assets at fair value through other

HeREE comprehensive income 15,523 7,482

EEMESHERE Deferred income tax assets 21,807 27,301
2 HA AT U Bl Fr 1S L Current income tax recoverable 1,883 1,372
TERRDREE Corporate and unallocated assets 85,945 89,193

FEEMBRRRAMNEEE  Total assets per consolidated statement
of financial position 7,747,276 7,585,931
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5 ZH#EER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HMEBEARIEE 2HBRAT : Reconciliations of other material items are as
follows:

:%ﬁ:_ﬂi —7 —= E'E
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Depreciation
- —J;_i&"* 4 - Reportable segment total 74,197 68,552
ANSIFEE — Corporate headquarters 2,240 2,369
76,437 70,921
BEARMY Capital expenditure
— —Ifiﬁ o E AR — Reportable segment total 17,633 73,884
RN BE - Corporate headquarters — -
17,633 73,884
RATIRBFETM - U TARERRE The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of
HEMiHE N 2 WE T R BEER the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
ZIHBORTE) is determined by the destination of the invoices

billed, is as follows:

:%ﬁ:_ﬂz —7— E'E

2021 2020

BETT BET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

JEZEM North America 345,221 603,380
M (TBEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,999,852 1,707,703
B Europe 516,633 451,696
&% Hong Kong 395,023 461,857
3,256,729 3,224,636
HEr—_ZEZ-_—F+_-_A=+—HItE For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenues
€ #)7%5%1,418,527,000T (== of approximately HK$1,418,527,000 (2020:
T 4 5 #1,278,805,0007T) K B HK$1,278,805,000) and HK$421,282,000 (2020:
#421,282,0007C (ZE-EF : B HK$344,633,000) were derived from the top two
344,633,0007T) 2 WEDRIRKBE MK external customers respectively. These customers
INBRE - ZERFPSEAREBRRZEZ individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
10% S BA £ o 2 F W= BEMS BP9 & revenue. These revenues are attributable to the

UL %5 © EMS division.
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oEER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
NTRAEBERMRTSE D 2 IERD Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
BEM : geographical market is as follows:
B —E-THF
2021 2020
BEFR  AEFR
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEM North America 7 14
Tl (TBEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 310,621 311,930
B Europe 20 20
aBE Hong Kong 4,285,936 4,297,665
4,596,584 4,609,629
EMBEEBEME  WELREE & Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
BYE - - THREEE BERANK equipment, investment properties, right-of-use
B ENER  BRAAEBERA assets, investments in associates, interests in joint
HM2EBANSREE Sl kEM ventures, financial assets at fair value through
FEWEFARZRERE - ETBER other comprehensive income, deposits and other
JEFTISIREE © receivables and restricted cash. They exclude

deferred income tax assets.

AEEEERTIEEFPEHNEBEAYN The Group has recognised the following liabilities
BfE: related to contracts with customers:
. ke
2021 2020
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BHBEE —EMSHEI Contract liabilities — EMS division 126,291 164,190
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5 oHEFR (F) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TRINTEER E—FEENEFE The following table shows how much of the revenue
HNBEEBEENCHERKESEHE ¢ recognised relates to carried-forward contract

liabilities that were satisfied in a prior year:

—E-—F —E-FF

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EMS &9 EMS division 164,190 147,465
6 HA 6 OTHER INCOME

—E-—F —E-FF

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT B Government grant 13,861 19,226

HEER RZI Sales of scrap and spare parts 2,822 1,399

Hth Others 123 701

16,806 21,326

7 EEGABX (BRESHE) 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

. I
2021 2020
BET T BEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
I& %4 2R EMBEEE Wages, salaries, allowances and other
& termination benefits 439,914 416,999
BIRE A — REMEEZI  Pension costs — defined contribution
schemes 45,760 26,808
485,674 443,807

182 ITREREEEGRAR 2021 4



e SRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE)E%UI%E& (BRESHE)
&

REBABEMEGEREBRILES
MRABeEE ([RESETE]) - RFE
CREICEERAEBEENFAFAE -
NESHFRABAZTAETRE - BEQE
E e AEBRKEEESAS AR
FFEMER MR e AREEMEBRA
(EEREBEHERBESEEN)
25% - REBEREEZHALERE A
SRABE1500T (ZE=_ZEF : A
BH#A15007T) c HAEHEAKEE T
B8 -

REARKME ([HE]) REEHB
NElZEEBTE MBEEBRFRY <R
KM EIKE -

B R B A R A B K R B SR
RETBIHR - B A RZARFMN —F
BRI SR - FEREEBNA
BERNEEB ZENKRE - ZFE THOR
WK E B IER DR A EFOKFE -

FIARERERBEZBKANE
45,760,000 (ZE T F : B
26,808,000 7T) FEASE BB AT BFE
BEERE TIPS

7

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, each of the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2020: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Vietnam are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC and Vietnam governments.

The relevant subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in the
PRC and Vietnam. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the schemes. The PRC and Vietnam governments
are responsible for the pension liability to the
retired staff. No forfeited contributions under these
schemes can be used to reduce the existing level
of contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$45,760,000 (2020:
HK$26,808,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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8 MKRFFEHAFE, (&HE) 8 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
BRETSHEEAIFNE, (B518) 2T Profit/(loss) before income tax is analysed as
follows:
—E-—F —E_THF
2021 2020
BETT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
M - BERBHBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 52,455 50,191
FEREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,982 20,730
e Depreciation 76,437 70,921
ZERDEN & Auditor’'s remuneration 3,260 3,156
RITFES Bank charges 2,466 2,246
EFEREE Building management fees 13,721 13,959
LB R KBRS Chemicals and consumables 32,589 27,101
B& Commission fees 1,769 18
H2B Cleaning expenses 3,230 3,397
TEE Entertainment expenses 1,018 640
BT 308 & 2= 8 Government rent and rates 2,957 3,113
BT B o0 & Government surcharges 6,117 8,443
1R B & Insurance charges 2,302 2,427
FEREXBR Legal and professional fees 5,479 5,317
RERX Motor vehicle expenses 4,812 4,646
MAERMERZ Office and factories expenses 3,967 4,669
CHRE 7 K&EHEHES Operating lease rental in respect of
short-term leases 2,690 1,386
HEE . EIIREME TERN Recruitment, training and other staff
X welfares expenses 4,648 12,647
HENRS Repairs and maintenances 15,886 13,580
REE Security expenses 2,463 3,120
EIRE Travelling expenses 868 1,625
B e Transportation 29,624 29,231
NELER Utility expenses 23,949 20,322
EHAfth Others 12,172 8,051
Htpgeg=n Other operating expenses . 175,987 169,094
HEE Total 252,424 240,015
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Hazs,  (B51E) — B 9 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET
—E-—F —E-EF
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

BEIESm T AKE — 2% Realised losses on financial instruments —
net - (1)
HEWE - BEk&REZWE Gains on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 1,857 198
FEH B8 — F5 Exchange losses - net (7,313) (50,993)
HE Bk Gains on lease modification - 167
b A5 BR R 8 Write-off of other payables 5,169 -
W Bl @ 1 B sy - FEUNES 4 A Recovery of amount due from an associate
BIFRIAE previously written off 7,310 -
HAh Others - (9)
7,023 (50,638)
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10 EERSREEEZHE 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
REBEZZT-_—F+=A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IFFEZEEMEHINT ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

REBALT

FENELR

RiNER AEZEE  DENSHRM

HibERz ez BEEAY HpESREZ
ik #e BisTEL EEZY EREEA [ £355 EhEe BANELHE ame

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

Remuneration with the

paidor  management

Employer’s receivable  of the affairs of

Estimated contribution in respect of the Company or
Discretionary Housing money valueof  to aretirement accepting office its subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries bonus allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
AR AR BETR AR BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&% (ME1)  Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note 1) 70 4,355 1,202 - - - - - 5,627
TEH Wong Yin Man, Ada 70 2,292 1,042 - - 18 - - 3,422
BiE Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 70 76 150 - - - - - 996
BE® (KiE2)  Wan Man Keung (Note 2) 2 352 1,042 - - - - - 1,423
BB Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 70 1,757 320 - - - - - 2,147
BH (f53)  Chan Wai Ming, Hermes (Note 3) 53 916 = = - 13 - - 98
e Li Ka Cheung, Eric 160 - - - - > - - 160
BEE Yu Sun Say 160 - - - - - - - 160
Py ] Alfred Donald Yap 160 - - - - - - - 160
i Cheung Chi Chiu, David 160 - - - - - - - 160
&% Total 1,002 10,448 3,756 - - 3 - - 15,237
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10 EENSREEREZME (&)

(a) E=M< (&)

WRE-F-TE+-A=1-F
EFEZEFHEHIIMT -

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

HERART

FENEAR

RINEN HEREE  LRNTHRE

EfpiEhlz Az BEEAR EBEIREZ
B i 3200 RERH ftHReE =2 EYHe ENIRLEE S

Emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

Remuneration with the

paid or management

Employer's receivable o the affairs of

Estimated contribution inrespectof  the Company
Discretionary Housing ~ money valueof  toaretirement  accepting office ~ or its subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries bonus allowance  other benefts  benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BRI BT BETT BRI
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
TEH (MiE1)  Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note 1) 70 4,355 1,755 - - - - - 6,180
I8 Wong Yin Man, Ada 70 2,292 1,05 - - 18 - - 3,935
5% Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 70 776 180 - - - - - 1,026
BRE (KiE2)  WanMan Keung (Note 2) 70 2,465 155 - - - - - 4,090
#IE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 70 1757 400 - - - - - 2201
2R Li Ka Cheung, Eric 160 - - - - - - - 160
BER Yu Sun Say 160 - - - - - - - 160
PN Alfred Donald Yap 160 - - - - - - - 160
FEi Cheung Chi Chiu, David 160 - - - - - - - 160
% Total 990 11,64 5,445 - - 18 - - 18,098

Mzt TRMAEERBARRRITEEE, - WERITE Note 1: Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chief Executive Officer

BEF NS IMEHREE

2 - RRBEEN =T~ A— BRHERIT

BE-

Mz : REMAEER T —FOA-BEZER

HWiTES -

of the Company, no separate disclosure in respect of the
remuneration of the CEO has been made.

Note 2: Mr. Wan Man Keung retired as Executive Director on 1 June
2021.

Note 3: Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes was appointed as Executive
Director on 1 April 2021.
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10 EENSREEREZME (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME (&)

@Q:g:—i)}_?—vi
TZA=tT—RLFE BES
EREHRERETAME -

EERKEFN

TEEMESFEREINREEZ Z
E-_—FR-_FT-_FF+=A
=t BLEFERAZN -

ESRIERBKER

I A ] B 5 R U RIS R AR &L
EIFEFRIFIFFFZ
A=+—HILEFERXZA -

REREZERBEOE=F1FH
KB

RBE_Z_—FR_Z_ZF
TZA=+T—HLEFER AR
A ERRHEEERBAFE=T
A ERRE -

MEE  IZFEFEHNZE
A.ﬁ_&n/(vrigmsﬁﬁfﬁ_
RENER - BEERANHEMER
ZNER

RBE_Z-_—FR-_T_FF
TZA=Z+-"BLFEFERK
FREMKHE TERES - X
ZEBEREHNEAERRZS
EEEEIRERENER
BEEFMELEMRS -
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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10 EXEREREER2HE ()

(f)

EERXRS ZHIAEHNHH
EREHE

REBEZTE-_—FRZFT_FTF
+ZA=+—BLFEFHERK
FREMER - NARWHEET L
I AEEEBMARARESE
FIEEEETRSEAERZN
BERS - RHHAH o

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(f)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

(9) EREESHMEAL (g) Five highest paid individuals
FR AEEBRBEZSHE A The five individuals whose emoluments were
T BE=ZR%(ZFTFF @ the highest in the Group for the year include
Z)EF FEZHMEeEHEN LEX three (2020: four) Directors whose emoluments
ENZoM - B TR (ZEZF are reflected in the analysis presented above.
F:—F) AN ZEMEFH S The emoluments payable to the remaining two
NN (2020: one) individuals are as follows:
—E--F ke 5
2021 2020
BET T ST T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e RHEAET] Salaries and other benefits 3,315 1,323
TE4T Bonus 277 102
BIRESRAN — REMEFKETElI  Pension costs — defined contribution
schemes 18 18
3,610 1,443
A
Number of individual
—EB-—F —EEF
2021 2020
B < %5 [E] Emolument bands
B#51,000,001 7t — 7B# 1,500,000t HK$1,000,001- HK$1,500,000 - 1
7% 1,500,001 7T — A% 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000 1 -
7% 2,000,001 7T — A% 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001- HK$2,500,000 1 -

FRAEEMEINMNE TE
= ERRIIMEMAREE
A& B1& 2 52 =k 1F /5 B B
fB{E -

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.
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10 EERGREEEZHE (F) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(h) SREEE (TEEES) # (h) Senior management’s (excluding
&HE Directors) emoluments by band
SREEE (TEEES) 2Me The emoluments of senior management
NFLATEE - (excluding Directors) fell within the following

bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020

B+ & E Emolument bands

75 #5 500,001 7T — #% 1,000,000  HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 2 -

7% 1,000,001 7c — %% 1,500,000 7t HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 3
Mzt REREER_T_—FHA—BE Note: Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Hermes was a senior management

ZERWTESRI RENEEE - before appointed as Executive Director on 1 April 2021,
11 BERKN — FE 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—B-—F —TTF
2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

AU A Finance income

- T SRITEARZ R RIRA — Interest income on bank deposits 17,607 18,358

A PR AR Finance costs

- HEBBZMERX - Interest expenses on lease liabilities (2,961) (2,335)
— RITERZ B — Interest expenses on bank borrowings (43,481) (53,315)
AE@ERS  Totalfinancecosts  (46442)  (55650)
BRARA — JFE Finance costs — net (28,835) (37,292)
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P8

EBNESHERELEBSRRENEE ZA
FHERB A BEERE165% (ZE=F
F 1 16.5%) FTIRBHE o

N5 B B kB B A BB AR R B
XS ((EMER]  BHEAM
SHREZ 5% ( —E-FF :25%)
HARBZZ2ENBRRES R (5
M) BRAA (TESEM]) BRd o 2
BEMNTEEMBEAETZ15% (=

T 15%) BELEAMERE -

BE_ZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H8H-

APASRB RIS S ¢

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated
profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
Limited (*“WTSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
rate of 15% (2020: 15%) under the New and High
Technology Enterprises status till 31 December
2023.

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

—EZ—F —E-EF
2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

EHFEH Current income tax
— BEFEH - Hong Kong profits tax 5,949 6,882
— JBYNELIE — Overseas taxation 27,269 25,406
— BEFEEREE — Over-provision in prior years (747) (9,638)
IRIEFTER (MizE22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) 4,717 3,398
37,188 26,048
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12 FrEHMAx (&)

BFRAARSERBAFE (BE) 2
THA RN IR A Gt E BB E M /0
FEREAFHAOERSEOT

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

follows:
—E-—-F —E_THF
2021 2020
BET T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MBS BRTFIE, () Profit/(loss) before income tax 126,662 (735,630)
HEANEFE 2B AR R Tax calculated at the domestic tax rates
EZEIE applicable to profits in the respective
places 21,882 (120,985)
DEFHHBENTIRELNNER Tax effects of associate and joint ventures’

BMEEEHBTE results reported, net of tax (5,808) 53,342
AR Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,063 88,434
HAERBUA Income not subject to tax (4,418) (3,062)
W RELEFSHEERNT Tax losses of which no deferred income tax

T &5 18 asset was recognised 13,216 17,957
BEFEBEEE Over-provision in prior years (747) (9,638)
e Income tax expense 37,188 26,048

ERAMEFIRERI7%(ZFF
F:16%) °

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17%
(2020: 16%).
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13 RE 13 DIVIDENDS
TE I FRZIZFEEFEMNNKRE The dividends paid in 2021 and 2020 were
o Bl B 4978 ¥16,747,0007T ( & & approximately HK$16,747,000 (HK$0.035 per
7 #0.0357T) & & ¥ 23,925,000 share) and HK$23,925,000 (HK$0.05 per share)
(BRE®0.057T) - HRA QR EE respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
BRRAFAGLEZERZBEE-ZT ended 31 December 2021 of HK$0.025 per share,
T—H+ZA=tT—HIEFERAR amounting to a total dividend of approximately
EAEBRBE0025T A HNBE HK$11,963,000 will be proposed at the upcoming
11,963,000 7T ° Lt 35 BF 7 3 5= W & ) annual general meeting of the Company. These
BRI ER 2 REARR B © financial statements do not reflect this final dividend
payable.
:g:—ﬂi —7— E'E
2021 2020
BETT BEET I
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERFERE — FREE Interim dividend paid — HK$0.015
0.016 7T (ZE-FF : (2020: HK$0.02) per share
75¥0.027T) 7,177 9,570
BORKEIIR B — BB Proposed final dividend — HK$0.025
0.0257L (ZE = 4F : (2020: HK$0.02) per share
S#0.0270) 11,963 9,570
19,140 19,140
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14 BRERN, (Fi8) 14 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(a) EX (a) Basic
BREXRRBF, (BER) HIEAR Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated
A AEEFIE (E1E) BRI by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to
FABETERRZ INEFIIE owners of the Company by the weighted
FTE o average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

—E—F TE T
2021 2020
NAREA AEGFIE Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
(B8 B TIT) Company (HK$'000) 89,474 (761,674)
DETERRZ INEF B Weighted average number of ordinary
(FA) shares in issue (in thousands) 478,484 478,484
BREXEF, (E8) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK$)
(FBHTT) 0.19 (1.59)
(b) #8 (b) Diluted
MEGREFEE2RTRESERE No diluted earnings per share is presented
¥ - AAEARMEEEABMEERL 2 for both years because there is no dilutive
HE TR o potential ordinary shares outstanding

throughout both years.
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15 Y%  WERRE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BB - #a5
BT  ERIE k& HAREE nE ait
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Furniture and Motor
Buildings  in progress  equipment fixtures vehicles Total

AL AT ARTn BRI BRTn ARTx
HK§000 ~ HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$'000

W=Z-ZF-F-H At1January 2020

KAE Cost 115,686 10,183 827,620 145,380 13,391 1,112,260
RAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (49,680) - (702,306) (129,032) (11,085) (892,103)
REFE Net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
R-E-FE-F—H At1January 2020
BOKEFE Opening net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
NE Additions - 20,206 52,679 999 - 73,884
HE Disposals - - (589) - - (589)
BA/ (&) Transfer from/(to) 30,389 (30,389) - - - -
g Depreciation (5,490 - (39,799) (4,404) (498) (50,191)
ERAEEE Currency translation differences (635) - 7,305 25 - 6,695
HRREFE Closing net book amount 90,270 - 144,910 12,968 1,808 249,956
WZE-ZF+-F At 31 December 2020
=+-A
RAME Cost 148,604 - 891,223 146,454 13511 1,199,792
RAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (58,334) - (746,313) (133,486) (11,703) (949,836)
REFE Net book amount 90,270 - 144,910 12,968 1,808 249,956
BE - #8 \ )
gF ERIR REE  HERREE RE At
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Furniture Motor
Buildings in progress  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total

BBTT  E®Tn  BETR EBTn  B%Tn  BETR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

RZBZ-£-F—-H At1January 2021

HREFE Opening net book amount 90,270 - 144,910 12,968 1,808 249,956
NE Additions - 5,890 11,443 300 - 17,633
HE Disposals - - (451) - - (451)
g Depreciation (6,257) - (41,632) (4,505) (61) (52,455)
ERBEES Currency translation differences 1,482 65 3,363 7 (2 4,915
HRRERE Closing net book amount 85,495 5,955 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,598
WZZ--%+=F At 31 December 2021
el
RAME Cost 151,426 5,955 869,398 143,301 13,230 1,183,310
ZHFTERNE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (65,931) - (751,765)  (134531)  (11,485)  (963,712)
EHFE Net book amount 85,495 5,955 117,633 8,770 1,745 219,598
R—_BE-_—F+-_A=+—H" As at 31 December 2021, certain bank borrowings
ETROTEFHEEBEROAE are secured on buildings with carrying amount
20,323,000 (ZZE —ZTF : & of approximately HK$20,323,000 (2020:
#20,911,0007T) 2 & F{EH M HK$20,911,000) (Note 31).

(B$3E31) »
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16 REWE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-—-F —E_TF

2021 2020

BET T BEET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Kn—A—H At 1 January 2,052,585 2,534,016
DABEEE Fair value losses (11,700) (483,025)
HEBEERE Currency translation differences 623 1,594
W+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2,041,508 2,052,585
AEBIZEMFEARZIEEMEER The Group’s interest in investment properties at
B10E50F 2 HIBELRFE - their net book values are on medium-term leases of

10 to 50 years.

RZ=E : —E +-_A=+—8B" & As at 31 December 2021, certain bank borrowings
FTRITE R B EREE TE B K are secured on investment properties with an
2,006, OOO 00075 (ZT_ZTF : B8 aggregate carrying amount of approximately
1,579,000,000 7T) < 1& & ¥ 3 {E 1K 17 HK$2,006,000,000 (2020: HK$1,579,000,000) (Note
(BFEE31) © 31).
FXARIREYEBERE Value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

—EF--F ke

2021 2020

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

EEYE Properties in Hong Kong 2,016,200 2,027,900

BBEBEIINDE Properties outside Hong Kong 25,308 24,685

2,041,508 2,052,585
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REWE (F)
rEEzEEBRR

REMEBFFIREBLIBIAGHE - &
EMER-_ZTE-_—F+-A=+T—8BK
—TE-EF+-_A=+—HZEESRB
JRAEMTESEEFHEAER AR E
ToEARENEMEBEeERE8 -
BREBBMBRELERFE13R - ZE
BEMEZ AABEFEERRINE
R e

REE 2 PR F RS R ETT
KREWERME EREEEERER -
BEAEEZRER - BEEEZEK
ERHEBEMEREFEFELTASR

Nk
IN ©

EEBEZEGNE®REAGEEN®
h DTEIRAABEZEE - ER

A — B - ZEBIR2WE - AR
BAREBEZSH RS -

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The investment properties are valued semi-annually
on the direct comparison approach. The valuations
of the investment properties at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals
Limited, who is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The fair value measurement
information for these investment properties in
accordance with HKFRS 13 is given below.

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management and
the team at least once bi-annually, in line with the
Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that explains
the reasons for the fair value movements.
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16 REWE (&)
rEEzGERRE (&)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

DAEERE
Fair value measurements
HEEE
WEERD S EXHA EREE
ZBE BERSSH BE2y
(E1R) ($28) (%34)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BETT BETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERAAEETE Recurring fair value measurements
R-B=--5+=-HA=+-H As at 31 December 2021 = - 2,041,508
W-Z-FF+-A=+—H  Asat31 December 2020 - - 2,052,585

FRN F1E - FoORNEIFZEAL
| o

Level 3 during the year.

198
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16 REV (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
ERAEAELBESHYGFELAR Fair value measurements using significant
BE (F34&) unobservable inputs (Level 3)

REMF
Investment properties
5B EBENH @5t
Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BT T BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R-Z--%-A-H At 1 January 2021 2,027,900 24,685 2,052,585
AREEEE Fair value losses (11,700) - (11,700)
EXREER Currency translation differences - 623 623
R-ZBE--5+-A=+-H At 31 December 2021 2,016,200 25,308 2,041,508
FRARBEEEAE (RER Total unrealised losses for the year included in
FiBEETAGERERA the consolidated income statement for assets
[RENEAAEELE ] held at the end of the year, under ‘Change in
ET) fair value of investment properties’ (11,700) - (11,700)
RN_E-FTF—-H—H At 1 January 2020 2,510,700 23,316 2,534,016
DREEER Fair value losses (482,800) (225) (483,025)
EHnE xR Currency translation differences - 1,594 1,504
R-_E-ZF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2020 2,027,900 24,685 2,052,585
FRALREEEE (RFL Total unrealised losses for the year included in the
REEFARERREERA consolidated income statement for assets held
[RENERALEBELE) at the end of the year, under ‘Change in fair
ET) value of investment properties’ (482,800) (225) (483,025)
KEMEZ A ABEEEREE Fair values of investment properties have been
EEEHE EFREUTURE valued by the direct comparison approach
FEREAMRDLEME - WLRER assuming sale of the properties in their existing
AmE LA RS2 EREER states with the benefit of vacant possession and by
S5ER - making reference to comparable sales transactions

as available in the relevant market.
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16 REWE (&)

ERAERBZERSUTEANE
B (834K) (M)

MERTIRREEARAFETSLED
¥ MIL\BEEBEEGERAL - S&HE
m - AEAE - EERBHIEFMAUL
B RIRFTEEMEZBIE - thsh - fh
ERTETMEAERAITELEZLS
WMERZEZENBLEERE  TXLEN
—RBHERETE-BERZZFME
RAITH

FR - HERDAELEE -

AEBRBCEHEHTLIREYME - ¥
WHRE2EIIF  WHEEEIREN
BMEZIGHEDR FHEHERERS K
KL - BE_E-_—F+-_A=+—
BIEFE  HEVMEZHSWALE
4 578 64,030,000C (ZE T4 :
7E¥67,476,0007T) © MIEEEERX
) EE 14,912,000 (T4 -
715,201,000 7T) °

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 2 to
3 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$64,030,000 (2020:
HK$67,476,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$14,912,000 (2020:
HK$15,201,000).
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17 &

AN R A R A R B AR A &
BB R o

AEEHEZHEMEIEMAERE - H

NE -BIFEEkEE HEBP—KET
B2E 155 o

(i) #HEVBERIRFHEER

TREAVHARRAKRIIRIATHE
HEBHENDE

17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

The Group leases a number of premises mainly for
use as factories, office premises, staff quarters and
warehouses. The leases are typically made for fixed
periods from 2-15 years.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial
position shows the following amounts relating

to leases:

—E-—F —ECTF
2021 2020
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEEE Right-of-use assets
FAE 3 &+ b fF A A Leasehold land and land use rights 83,539 74,948
T RIEF Factories and buildings 48,396 35,228
131,935 110,176

HEEE Lease liabilities

kD) Current 20,804 5,147
IERE Non-current 26,312 27,946
47,116 33,093

—TE U BREERNENEE
44788000 (Z T T F: B K
4,023,0007T) MFFEEE

REBEZE-_TE_FTF+_A=+—H1
FERN LHEEFHEEHBRE A%
EEhiE BEERAEEENRD
51,000t EEBEEBERNARE
#218,0007C - REZE-E-_—F+=
A=+—HLFEA  BEEKEHA
RZZE-_—F+_A=+—H8 HTIR
TEFRBAEEERL 56,870,000
T (ZZE=FF : #%58518,0007T)
2 F S EEEE (M3E31) -

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
2021 financial year were HK$44,788,000 (2020:
HK$4,023,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group modified leases with right-of-use assets
amounted to approximately HK$51,000 and lease
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$218,000
under the mutual agreement with landlord. No
lease modification was made for the year ended 31
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank borrowings
are secured on right-of-use assets with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$56,870,000 (2020:
HK$58,518,000) (Note 31).
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17 #HE (&) 17 LEASES (continued)

(i) AR EXPHEEREHE (i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement

Kmi%ﬁlh’\b/{—l—?ﬁﬁﬂ% 5 The consolidated income statement shows the

mal
&5 following amounts relating to leases:

—E--F —TTHE
2021 2020
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREEENITEX Y Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
THE Lt N b M Leasehold land and land use rights 2,262 2,220
THREF Factories and buildings 21,720 18,510
23,982 20,730
B GTAREBRKA) Interest expense (included in finance costs) 2,961 2,335
EREAEENRE Expenses relating to short-term leases
(FFAEMZERS) (included in other operating expenses) 2,690 1,386
5,651 3,721
T -FHERGENRERLHEER The total cash outflow for lease liabilities in 2021
FE#20,782,0007T (ZE =T 4F : B was HK$20,782,000 (2020: HK$18,134,000).

18,134,000 7T) °
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Limited (“SIHL")
(Note 1 and 2)
M1 AEEERET -2 ERERREABEE
REFSEE  AERAHZERKRES

HEBRTZEN -

18 & NRINIRE 18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E--F —E-THF
2021 2020
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt N AR E Investments in associates
— BEEEFE — Share of net assets 26,583 25,719
ELHEEFEEBIT : Movements in share of net assets is as follows:
—E-—-F —E-TF
2021 2020
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
m—A—H At 1 January 25,719 26,062
g Dividend (2,441) (1,500)
FEAE B &~ R A E Share of profit of an associate 3,123 949
FEHEE AR 2 EEMmEZS Share of currency translation differences of
an associate 182 208
R+—A=+—H At 31 December 26,583 25,719
RZEZ—FR_FT_FTF+=A As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
=+—8  AEERNANELTE2E interests in the following principal associates, which
ENRIEE R are unlisted:
DRER S BR 3L i B BERREERLLH TEXK B9
Proportion of ownership Measurement
Name of company Place of incorporation interest % Principal activity method
:g:_$ —= 3 —= qz
2021 2020
EREREEERA FEHS REZR i
([EmE HXJ)(WE1 ~2J3)
Semk Holdings International ~ Cayman Islands 9.04 - Investment Equity
Limited (“SHIL”) holding
(Notes 1, 2 and 3)
ERERZERERA SRS Emex i
(M RER “H&J)(W%H&z)
Semk International Holdings ~ Cayman Islands 10.99 10 Inactive Equity

Note 1: The Group has the right to appoint one director to the Board
of SHIL and SIHL. Therefore the Group is regarded as having
significant influence in these investees.
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

Note 2: On 25 January 2021, SIHL repurchased its shares and the
Group's interests in SIHL increased from 10% to 10.99%. On
19 March 2021, its principal activity, including provision of
licensing services business operating through a subsidiary was
transferred to SHIL by receiving shares of SHIL in return. On 29
March 2021, SIHL distributed the shares of SHIL to the Group
by distribution in specie. Thereafter, the Group's interests in
SHIL was 9.37% and SIHL became inactive. SHIL introduced
new investors and the Group's interests in SHIL was diluted
to 9.04% as at 31 December 2021. Subsequently, SHIL was
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 17 January 2022. The
interests in SHIL was further diluted to 7.96% after listing.

Note 3: SHIL was incorporated on 10 December 2020 as an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the character licensing business and e-commerce
and the other business.

The Group’s share of revenue and results of its

JEMLEEMEBENOT ¢ associates and the assets and liabilities, are as
follows:
——fF —EEF
2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE Total assets 409,982 296,299
MBEE Total liabilities (115,917) (39,108)
BESE Net assets 294,065 257,191
e Revenue 290,730 99,759
FEME Profit for the year 34,548 9,494

MBEERBEHIR

TEWMMBER LR L RRHIRE

ZHREEZ $0R ©

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in the
associates.

—E-—F —T-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

R+—A=+—HB2ZEEFE Netassets at 31 December 294,065 257,191
EMREEFE@9.04% Share of net assets @ 9.04% (2020: 10%)

ZEZFF 1 10%) 26,583 25,719

L‘ETE 5’#%’& FIFE@ 9.04%  Share of profit of an associate @ 9.04%
ZEZTF 1 10%) (2020: 10%) 3,123 949
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SBELENES 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

- —E_TF

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

JEIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,046,053 1,013,979
ERTEERE Loans to joint ventures 1,095,402 1,134,672
2,141,455 2,148,651
EIEEEFEZESHOTET - Movements in share of net assets is analysed as

follows:

—E-—F —E_TF

2021 2020

BT T BETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

n—H—H At 1 January 1,013,979 1,338,210
JEEAENEFE, (E518)  Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures 32,074 (324,231)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,046,053 1,013,979

RN-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ~&E
RATHELETEZEALECEBEAER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interests
in the following principal joint ventures, which are

unlisted:
NEEW 1 A 3L it B BERERLS FEXK HENE SRFEE
Proportion of
Place of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of company incorporation interest % Principal activities relationship  method
B _T_FTF
2021 2020
Talent Chain RBER RS REER BiEE R
Investments Limited BVI 35.7 35.7 Investment holding  Note Equity
(Note) (PH7F)
BRKREER AT o MERH Bt i3
(PH5E)
Crown Opal Investment Hong Kong 35.7 35.7 Property holding Note Equity
Limited (Note)
REERRES MERE TER i3
Open Vantage Limited  BVI 35.7 35.7 Property investment N/A Equity

Mf5E : Talent Chain Investments Limited 2 K&
NRABRIEEERAAINEMERRETER -
MEBEEFBMREENBDEEFT  HE
FOEBWAERE RZT_—F1+=A
=+—H #HLAEHLHHNBR (ZE_TF :
98%) BN AR EME -

Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Talent Chain
Investments Limited, is engaged in the business of property
holding. The property project represents the holding of a
commercial building in Kwun Tong, which comprises 20-storey
of office floors. As at 31 December 2021, 98% (2020: 98%) of
the office portion were classified as investment properties.
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19 SEhENER (F) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain Investments Limited * Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal
B % & F R QA &Open Vantage Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
Limited &% A A R] - E AR {7 I & 7] BY private companies and there is no quoted market
FHIGWME o price available for their shares.
UTRIEEAEEMEBEAZEE D Set out below is the summarised financial
EIZMBERME - information for joint ventures that are material to the
Group.
Talent Chain e
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
:g:_q—: 7—7$ _g:_q—: —7—7¢ :g:_$ —7—7¢
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

BRTT BETT BETT AERETT BETr AR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000

BE ASSETS

Eink)] Non-current

REWE Investment properties 6,868,094 6,825,594 18,500 18,700 6,886,594 6,844,294

3Fﬁ§b§§ﬁ@§ﬁ Total non-current assets 6,868,094 6,825,594 18,500 18,700 6,886,594 6,844,294

RE Current

ﬁéﬂﬁ@fi@gﬁ Total current assets 176,206 284,585 65 49 176,271 284,634

=t LIABILITIES

RE Current

BB HER Trade payable and other

REMEBERE  current liabilities (excluding
(TBEERE[E) financial liabilities) (149,653) (187,840) (405) (5655) (150,058) (188,395)

TENREERE Total current liabilities (149,653) (187,840) (405) (655) (150,058) (188,395)

FERE Non-current

THAE Financial liabilities (3,476,229) (3,586,228) (4,015) (4,015) (3,480,244) (3,590,243)

HEm®EE  Other non-current liabilities (502,444) (510,012) - - (502,444) (510,012

FRBAERE  Total non-current liabilities  (3,978,673) (4,096,240) _ (4,015)  (4,015) (3,982,688) (4,100,255)

EEFE Net assets 2,915,974 2,826,099 14,145 14,179 2,930,119 2,840,278

Mz REMEZANBECHBLAEEMLERE Note: Fair values of investment properties have been valued by
EEERBMAEREGE - BEKREDWE independent valuer with the direct comparison approach and
RARBEERINAEIR - income capitalisation approach. The investment properties are

classified as Level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
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19 EEENER (&) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain e
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
“EC-F ZT-TF B —T-FTHF ZB--F —T-TH
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

BRI BETT BERETT ARt BETr AR
HK$’'000  HK$'000 HK$’'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

W Revenue 194,313 172,581 311 - 194,624 172,581
fEx Operating expenses (40,715)  (52,168) (132) (109)  (40,847)  (52,277)
THHEY Administrative expenses (97) (86) (13) (13) (110) (99)
BREMERR Change in fair value of

BEZE investment properties (45,866) (1,207,496) (200) (300)  (46,066) (1,207,796)
BELEEBL Profit/(loss) from continuing

8,/ (B18) operation 107,635 (1,087,169) (34) (422) 107,601 (1,087,591)
Fr8%: (%) /  Income tax (expense)/credit

i) (17,760) 179,383 - - (17,760) 179,383
BRETETARHE Profit/(loss) after income tax

MR AE, from continuing operation

(B#) 89,875  (907,786) (34) (422) 89,841  (908,208)
Hi2EBA Other comprehensive income - - - - = -
2@EKA, () Total comprehensive income/

B%E (loss) 89,875 (907,786) (34) (422) 89,841  (908,208)
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19 G ¥EMNER (8) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

B E R E R Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

FTERVFEREGErERED 2RE

Reconciliation of the financial information presented

BEHEE - to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.
—B-—f —EFF
2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—HA—HZEE%E Net assets at 1 January 2,840,278 3,748,486

FEFE (EE) Profit/(loss) for the year 89,841 (908,208)
R+-—A=+—H2&E%{E Netassets at 31 December 2,930,119 2,840,278
EEPEERLEMEEF Interests in joint ventures and share of net

BE@35.7% assets @ 35.7% 1,046,053 1,013,979
FEASS%FE,/ (B18)  Share of profits/(losses) of joint ventures

@ 35.7% @ 35.7% 32,074 (324,231)

BERTFEELELAEET 2B NHBE The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-

208

RART—EAEE - HEARENK
Hifgs - AR EBRARENAZRE
REFHE—#D -BEFRR MAE
rERHEFRNRABEREEAEE
BE - ZFSENBEE -

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 " K&£H
WEEBERBER 2 & RNEELSHA
BE-

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

free and will not be repaid in the coming twelve
months. They represent the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group'’s
net investments in the joint ventures. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of the loans to
the joint ventures approximate their fair values. The
amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no capital
commitments nor contingent liabilities related to the
development project.
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20 MEBAF
R_ZE-——F+=-_A=+—H " £ZK

20 SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

BABZEFBWT : December 2021 are as follows:
AR AR LA L it B BRTRARKRE FREEGRIEZEOL FEEK
Place of Issued and fully  Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation paid share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
—EC-F —E-%F
2021 2020
AERARES 357%TT REER
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERARES 10T REER
Catel (B.V.I.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100%  Investment holding
HBERRA 0 BEAT ESSL
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
IR 1R BEfEmEH
Elite Sourcing Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1 100% - Electronic products
trading
KEEXERRA B B2 REERREREER
HRRAHRIE
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and
acting as an agent
for its immediate
holding company
SEERRA 0 #%%1,000,000 7T RERR
Top Plenty Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
LERAARES 1% REER
Ubiquitous International BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
e 2,500,000 7T HEETER
Welco Technology Vietnam Vietnam US$2,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Company Limited manufacturing
ERHE (BMN) BRAA i 9,000,000% 7T BESTER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) PRC US$9,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products

Limited*
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20 MEAT (&)

20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NREER AR S 3t B BERTRARKRE AEEEERAEZEAEDL TEXH
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation paid share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
—EC-F —TZTF
2021 2020
ETRBE ORI BRRA" e 30,000,000 7T HEETEM
Welco Wong's Technology PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
(Shenzhen) Limited* manufacturing
K 137K T BETERES
Wellink Dynamics Pte. Ltd. Singapore S$1 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
Fnp (R BRRA hE 7,500,000 % 7T HEETERD
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited* manufacturing
FREFARRA B 711,000,000 7 EfEmESH
Wong's Electronics Company Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products
Limited trading
IRIZ (58) ARAF B B 5007T REER
Wong's Industrial (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
SR 20,000,000 A HERTEAR
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and marketing
*H 10,000 % 7T mishE
Wong's International USA United States of US$10,000 100% 100%  Marketing
Corporation America
TREWERRA B B 1007T ETERES
Wong's Strategic Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Electronic products
trading
# REHBUEE - WARIRINIBEEDRE - * The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC
law.

* ESRH (BN ARARIND BT RERK
AR —F = —%+ A=++HHH 24,000,000
I ZE 9,000,000 E 7T ©

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

Issued and fully paid share capital of Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited reduced from US$24,000,000 to
US$9,000,000 on 27 July 2021.
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20 MEAT (&)

21

ERINEHAEBEEAEATENG
AEEEIEHNEEFECTENBER
Al e ARRIBEERAKEHEEERS -
FIEMHBERARZE2HHBERBD
Tk e

TSt B R S de oA il PN
BMBEHEE  RAEERARSHE
RRAVFEE -

BE_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HUILHFE
WA - BB A& 2 87T
BERER -

BRAREBEEFAHGCZEBRAN
TRMEE

() BAREBEEFAHEMLZERA
NEMEEZDE

BAnBEFAEMLEEBEAD
TRHEEBRIGFFFEETNR
AEF BAEEZCRVTHER
FRF A AT J80 (20 3h 528 428 iS5 L 70 Ltk AR
NER - ZEBFR/RERE
AREER RIS REAHEBM -

20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.

No summarised financial information for subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests is disclosed as the
Directors consider they are not material.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in this category.
These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.
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21 BAREBEFTAEMZHEHW AN 21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THEE (&) THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(i) RAABEFTAHEMEZEKA (ii) Equity investments at fair value through
NRERE other comprehensive income
BAREBEFAEMEERAD Equity investments at fair value through other
REREBBATENKRE comprehensive income comprise the following

individual investments:

—E-— —T-THF
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R ES Listed equity securities
— REB LT - Listed in Hong Kong 53 o8
— REBEINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 17 14
JEFTRRARE S Unlisted equity securities 15,453 7,440
15,523 7,482
FHEEME Market value of listed securities 70 42
—E-— —T-THF
2021 2020
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
IEMED Non-current 15,470 7 454
M ED Current 53 28
‘a5 Totall 15,523 7,482
HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+— The changes in fair value of financial assets at
HIEFE®BREZAALBEITA fair value through other comprehensive income
Hit2mMBRANEREEZR of HK$2,686,000 (2020: HK$507,000) was
A EE# & » B 2,686,000 recognised in other comprehensive income for
T AEMmMEEREKA(ZE the year ended 31 December 2021.

—Z4F B 507,0007T) ©
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(LIABILITIES)

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

NTREEMSIHEERELEREHEA The analysis of deferred income tax assets and
BT - deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

—EB-—F T FTF

2021 2020

BET T BET I

HK$’000 HK$'000

EIEFTS TR EE Deferred income tax assets 21,807 27,301
EEFRESHEE Deferred income tax liabilities (71,809) (70,136)
EEHESEEE Net deferred tax liabilities (50,002) (42,835)

EEFTISTAR B B @M T ¢

The movements on the deferred income tax account

is as follows:

—E-—F —E_TF
2021 2020
BT T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
n—H—H At 1 January (42,835) (44,651)

RERE W ERER Recognised in the consolidated income
(fF3E12) statement (Note 12) (4,717) (3,398)
REMZEBRAER Recognised in other comprehensive income (2,978) 3,704
EinE =R Currency translation differences 528 1,510
HR+=—B=+—H At 31 December (50,002) (42,835)
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22 EEFFEHEE,(AE)(E) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Rt AR H R — R B BE 2 A& e Al -

The movements in deferred income tax assets

214

BEFSHEERBERFAZE and liabilities during the year, without taking into
N consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
BEMSTHEE Deferred income tax assets:
fT£I8
HERERE B BR#E REEE MER aEm
Decelerated
tax Government Fair value of
depreciation  Provision grant Taxloss  derivative Total
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT BETR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZZEZFEE—F—H At1January 2020 9,219 15,966 5118 564 683 31,550
REA SRR Charged to the consolidated
income statement (1,338) (5,919) (1,290) - - (8,547)
REMZAEWAG A Credited to the other comprehensive
income - - - - 3,704 3,704
KRAEEE Currency translation differences 409 714 276 - - 1,399
N-E_ZEF At 31 December 2020
+ZA=1-H 8,290 10,761 4,104 564 4,387 28,106
REAURER Credited/(charged) to the
A/ (1K) consolidated income statement 3,378 (1,010) (1,383) - - 985
REM2ERANER  Charged to the other
comprehensive income - - - - (2,978) (2,978)
ERBREEE Currency translation differences 262 246 84 - - 592
RN-BE--% At 31 December 2021
+=A=t+-H 11,930 9,997 2,805 564 1,409 26,705
BT AE Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEIR
MERBITE BEERE e
Accelerated Fair value
tax adjustment
depreciation  on properties Total
BETT BETT BETR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZZEZT5—H—H At 1 January 2020 (10,455) (65,746) (76,201)
REFEREEREA Credited to the consolidated income
statement 1,363 3,786 5,149
ERnEESE Currency translation differences 111 - 111
R-—ZB—B&+-F=+—F At31December 2020 (8,981) (61,960) (70,941)
REGERERNB Charged to the consolidated income
statement (5,702) - (5,702)
ERREER Currency translation differences (64) - (64)
R-ZZB--&+-A=+—H At31 December 2021 (14,747) (61,960) (76,707)
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EEFTEHEE(BE)(E) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)
BEEFTSHEE T AENEBEH SR =R Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
BE 1% 38 R 2R B AR A B B 3R i B P AL 68 tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
CHIEEEETER R —F realisation of the related tax benefit through future
TZA=+—H  AEERANEHER taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
RABE 2B RBARIEEBEELN BB 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax
# 305,780,000 c (ZE_FF : K losses of approximately HK$305,780,000 (2020:
258,788,0007T) - AN BMZ FHE HK$258,788,000) available for offsetting against
ZRIEBEZ RRERNANESREE future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
MIEAZNEE T - BORIBIEEIR recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
BRBEEMBEEE - HEMB LA realisation of the related tax benefit through
TRIBE 1848 ¥ 235,978,000 (=F future taxable profit from these tax loss carry-
—ZT4F : % 215,493,0007T) AJERR forwards is not probable. The tax losses amounted
HisgeE - M BB R RMEIEBEY to approximately HK$235,978,000 (2020:
B 69,407,000 (—E —ZF : Bk HK$215,493,000) from Hong Kong subsidiaries can
43,295,000 7T) BRI A G A 458 - be carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses
amounted to approximately HK$69,407,000 (2020:
HK$43,295,000) from PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward in coming five years.
ABLE TRA B &M E A F 8 No deferred tax liability has been recognised in
ROIRERE FEE TR TR MR IR IE respect of the withholding tax on the undistributed
BE - WWIIHARDIKZERD KIRBE retained profits of certain PRC incorporated
FogerTes RZE-_—F+=A subsidiaries as the distribution of these
=+—8 - NEERF R FEM A AT undistributed retained earnings is not probable.
Bralae XEELE%1,218,682,000 As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s PRC
T (ZZEZF 4 : % 1,306,202,000 incorporated subsidiaries have approximately
TT) ZARDIRIRE I o gt B FE K HK$1,218,682,000 (2020: HK$1,306,202,000)
T2 HBAR IR E 2 EATENE undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The
ENF 5% ZE10% ° applicable withholding tax rate on dividend
distributed by PRC incorporated subsidiaries is
ranged from 5% to 10%.
(A 23 INVENTORIES
—E--F —F-FF
2021 2020
BT T BEET I
HK$’000 HK$’000
E R Raw materials 290,691 150,521
M Work in progress 28,278 57,986
K m Finished goods 69,518 105,059
388,487 313,566
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23 7F& (&)

BHE-FT-_—F+-A=+—HILF
- 7 & # %D % %1,291,0007T
(ZZE=ZF : #¥%30,592,0007T) £
AR AD [ATERZ RERE R
on | TR o

24 EERYEEFEE

23 INVENTORIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
reversal of provision for inventories of HK$1,291,000
(2020: HK$30,592,000) was recognised in
‘raw materials and consumables used’ in the
consolidated income statement.

24 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES

—E-—F ZEFF

2021 2020

BET T ST IT

HK$’000 HK$'000

m—HA—H At 1 January 213,410 236,350

ERKYETFEZRE Impairment losses of stock of completed

518 properties = (22,940)

R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 213,410 213,410
ETKEGFERRE - Stock of completed properties comprised:

:%ﬁ:_ﬂi — 7 —= E'E

2021 2020

BET T BETIT

HK$’000 HK$’000

BERANTEN Commercial office units 193,060 193,060

B Car parking space 20,350 20,350

213,410 213,410

EA_?'__E‘F H ‘f’ H - ET!:
RYEFEEIHMNES - Wik
ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ,ﬂ%msmooooﬁ(_?

T4 #%213,410,0007T) HIME - H
Wﬁ&@zi—f——iJr:HEJr—a
EtFEZHAEBERNERRES
BFEE(ZE_ZEF: REAEBEBEE
22,940,0007T) - EEM M EHFEE IR
HERREBER 2 EFME (FIFE31) °

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

As at 31 December 2021, stock of completed
properties are all located in Hong Kong and carried
at net realisable value amounted to HK$213,410,000
(2020: HK$213,410,000) and no impairment loss
(2020: impairment losses of HK$22,940,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
stock of completed properties were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 31).
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25 BUWEZEN 25 TRADE RECEIVABLES

—E-—F —T-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEWE 5 BR K Trade receivables 1,006,175 914,115
o EE SRR RIE Less: allowance for impairment

B of trade receivables (3,100) (1,974)

1,003,075 912,141

AEBHRTFTESRPZHREHETEN T
30BEZE 1208 1% - B It & WEE ]
FIE o

AEBREREEEREK - —REEH
R—ZEZ=ER BUEFHERSEE
B o NEEBORER BBIER ERIER
ZEMFOR - WREEERR - AEHE
I 4 5t FE W 5 BR SR A BR 15 B (e HE90
mEARAEMEERER - R R ERE
ANBEHIm B RERR - BIRE SRR
TITEEE ©

AEERWE ZFERIZEZH B2 RER
DITLT -

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
and no interest is charged.

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimise its credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by
invoice date is as follows:

—E-—F —ETF

2021 2020

BEET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

0%60H 0 - 60 days 700,265 572,521
61290 H 61 - 90 days 175,039 186,848
Hi®o0H Over 90 days 130,871 154,746
1,006,175 914,115

AEERABBYBHREELE IR
ERMEERBZBLITE  SABRE
Y8 5 B FE AR S IR IR R R A o P
3. 1(b) R AR ER R E S -

EWEBEZER cEEERAREE
GEESRY

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.
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25 BWESKRR (&)

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

AEERKESERZEEENLTYE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade

HEtE - receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

—E-—F —ETF

2021 2020

BET T BEET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

=T United States dollar 483,298 371,249

AREE Chinese renminbi 497,555 489,534

i Hong Kong dollar 25,322 53,332

1,006,175 914,115

26 FAfMNFE - -FTERHEHMEWERT 26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E-—F —EFF

2021 2020
BT T ST T

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEEEZIZLS Deposits for fixed assets 14,496 6,568
ERTFE Prepayments for inventories 21,978 17,377
JE IR (E L Value added tax receivables 10,195 8,127
RN EREE Effective rent receivable 198 1,223
ERBNAREELRS Management and utility deposit 5,539 5,539
FEUERFT B HLA Bank interest income receivables 6,277 5,180
o Y AR SR R TR 5RIR Other receivables and prepayments 68,434 57,459
127,117 101,473

o SEmENER 1D Less: non-current portion (20,035) (12,107)
mENED D Current portion 107,082 89,366

BNFIA - Al R EME RN ZRE

EATNIIEHEHE -

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits

and other receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

—EB-—F —ETF

2021 2020

BET T BEET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

AR Chinese renminbi 65,765 31,376
E7T United States dollar 10,593 880
i Hong Kong dollar 37,787 64,634
H Japanese yen 3,789 1,679
WEE Vietnam dong 8,909 2,128
Efh Others 274 776
127,117 101,473

218 ITREREEEGRAR 2021 4
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27 BELRELZEY - EPHR1THE 27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

REZREERS SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

—E-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERE Cash on hand 369 346

IRITIER Cash at bank 400,449 679,856

HekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 400,818 680,202
JREIBAR REEB=EH 2 Short-term bank deposits with original

RARRITIF 3K maturity over three months 877,757 738,916

ZBREHE Restricted cash 136,320 2,981
RERBEEFEY - Cash and cash equivalents, short-term

BHSRITER R ZR A4S bank deposits and restricted cash 1,414,895 1,422,099

BeMEeFEY BHRTFERANT
REIRE AT I EEEHE

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and restricted cash were denominated in
the following currencies:

—E-—F —E-ETF

2021 2020

BET T BETIT

HK$°000 HK$'000

B Hong Kong dollar 32,507 65,785
AR Chinese renminbi 906,756 481,266
ETT United States dollar 468,202 863,276
Efb Others 7,430 11,772
1,414,895 1,422,099

ROTTFERZNEETHERFENX A
218% (ZZT_FF : 2.66%) °

The weighted average effective interest rate on
bank deposits was 2.18% (2020: 2.66%) per
annum.

RITERIRERGRARITERIERZZ Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based

BRI R ERERA 2.

Re BEEZULRIREREEE
1,279,697,0007C (Z T _ZF : B
1,218,098,0007T) /WA EFR - A
BT EHIMNEEITRE © 2 EHIMNE
EEATHINEREREOESHR
Bl TEESBR RS -

on daily bank deposit rates.

Cash, short-term deposits and restricted cash of
HK$1,279,697,000 (2020: HK$1,218,098,000) are
held in China and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 21 9
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27

28

BeRBSZEY  BHRGE
ZESREES (&)

NZBE-—F+-_A=+—08 #i
136,320,000 T B R RITFRF B (E R A —
MEBHBEARIRERITRE RENIE
THREONZRETFR  EUAARE
HE e E-—_FAFEC
T _F+—AIB R _FF
+=Z—A=+—8 " #%20981,0007T A
RIBTTHBIERBENIZERENIRE
TR BEUARBRE THEgR_-F
—HF+—REH-

TTEEMIA

TAE T E(ERELEY M EMmIE
B

REMREHEHON T -_—F+ -4
T+t HZREASHEARAK
1,000,000,0007C (Z T =_ZF : B
1,000,000,0007C) °

THETADBARRAABE ABEN
TREERBRETARARBET AR
@2 AN - BRIFEE REP T AR
1ERIER © HOT4E TAEMRIREHREK
TEARNGEE e ARBDEE
KERE - BRAARTHRE T HER =
T _F(ZFFF ZF2F)

2IHR

AEBERRESRELD 2 SHBRE
RHfFE2.10 - BAEETETARRE
B2 TERBRF2HMEI3 -

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5

27

28

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, HK$136,320,000 were
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for a
banking facility grant to a subsidiary in Hong Kong
and electricity deposits and are denominated in
Chinese renminbi which will mature from June
2022 to November 2022. As at 31 December 2020,
HK$2,981,000 were restricted deposits held at
bank as reserve for electricity deposits and are
denominated in Chinese renminbi, which will mature
in November 2022.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contract at 31 December 2021
was HK$1,000,000,000 (2020: HK$1,000,000,000).

Derivatives are classified as financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
unless they are designated as hedges. They are
presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period. The outstanding
interest rate swaps will mature in 2022 (2020: 2022).

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
hedges is set out in Note 2.10. For information
about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.
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29 BNEZKRM

AEERNEZHEFRERBHAZRER
DR

29

TRADE PAYABLES

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

—E--F —ETHF

2021 2020

BETT BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

0zx60H 0 - 60 days 488,570 586,833
61290H 61 - 90 days 86,087 40,407
#8890 H Over 90 days 84,338 41,038
658,995 668,278

AR B E SRR REEA TS
A1

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

—EZ-F —TFF

2021 2020

BET T EEET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR Hong Kong dollar 102,275 147,599
AR Chinese renminbi 133,635 107,204
ET United States dollar 400,552 378,968
H Japanese yen 4,950 13,184
BT Euro 17,268 20,535
MR Vietnam dong 295 556
HAb Others 20 232
658,995 668,278
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30 ErtERRHEMENIRK 30 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-—F —E-EF

2021 2020

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

JEHE BRI AR Accrued employee benefit costs 115,803 113,608

H b IR Other tax payables 17,513 6,492

EEHmIE C RN RFEFER  Accrued freight, delivery and storage

charges 13,935 13,721

Rt A EEER Accrued utilities charges 1,870 1,362

EEtIE RS Accrued construction payables 19,272 21,123
IR I #78 B A8 B A3 A A Deferred income in relation to government

grant 11,575 16,936

Hib Others 54,902 30,125

234,870 203,367

B FERBE S Less: non-current portion (5,788) (11,290)

BN Current portion 229,082 192,077

AEBEAERAREMENERRZRE
EATNIIEHEHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and
other payables are denominated in the following

222

currencies:
—EB-—F —E-ETF
2021 2020
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$°000
AR Chinese renminbi 102,400 115,724
B Hong Kong dollar 93,897 63,528
xETT United States dollar 35,623 19,341
HEE Vietnam dong 2,627 3,160
H Japanese yen 75 1,324
Hih Others 248 290
234,870 203,367

TREBREEERAR 2021 F3R)
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BX 31 BORROWINGS
—E-—F —ZEEF
2021 2020
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZEWERITER - I Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 325,806 324,943
MERITER - |ER Short-term bank loans, unsecured 341,000 410,000
Ly RELITER Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FNEE  BIEM repayment within one year, secured 107,358 119,065
o REBRITENR Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FEERE  BIEM repayment after one year, secured 1,301,554 1,184,662
BE Total borrowings 2,075,718 2,038,670
—E-—-F —T_FTF
2021 2020
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEME Non-current 1,301,554 1,184,662
E Current 774,164 854,008
BB Total borrowings 2,075,718 2,038,670

RZZEZ—F+=-_A=+—H  &~5E

ERZEEBRMT

repayable as follows:

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings were

—E-—F —E-TF

2021 2020

BET T BET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

1FR Within 1 year 774,164 854,008
1&24F Between 1 and 2 years 485,825 435,008
2B 54 Between 2 and 5 years 815,729 749,654
BER Total borrowings 2,075,718 2,038,670
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31 B (&) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)

224

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 Bk
1,408,912,0007C (ZZE=ZTF : B
1,308,727,0007T) < RHISRITE KA
T3 BIBERIRE :

e WRZTE-_—F+-A=+—8"
BR M (B #4978 % 20,323,000 ¢ (=
T = T F: & ¥20,911,000
7T) 2%% WEREE - RE
B 4 /8 56,870,000 ( = &
— T 4 7 %58518,0007T)
LEREEE FREEBEHEE
2,006,000,0007C (ZE =F F :
7 #1,579,000,0007T) Z & E W
¥ NERHEEA)E® 213,410,000 7T
(ZZE=_ZF : F¥ 213,410,000
TL) ZEERMEFE R

o AREENAE E D ETalent Chain
Investments Limited 2 25.7%
TEZTF 1 257%) DEZK
(RGN 3

o ARAF—ZXKEEZEWB AR
It PR A& 7% ¥ 760,000,000 7T
YR -

R_ZE_—F+-A=+—H XL
Bz ERXARRARHEZ BRERE
1%&"

Br Lt I8 REEC R EE TR L
RITHEINZ & T RA TR BIZ A -

MBERE JHHEITL WHREE
SEBEHEE

gl

DS

FTREREBERAT 2021 F1

As at 31 December 2021, the long-term bank loans
of HK$1,408,912,000 (2020: HK$1,303,727,000)
were secured by the following:

e As at 31 December 2021, charges over
property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$20,323,000
(2020: HK$20,911,000), right-of-use assets
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$56,870,000 (2020: HK$58,518,000),
investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$2,006,000,000
(2020: HK$1,579,000,000) and stock of
completed properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$213,410,000 (2020:
HK$213,410,000);

e A share charge over the Group’s 25.7% (2020:
25.7%) share of Talent Chain Investments
Limited, a joint venture of the Group; and

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
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31 BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
the borrowing rate of 2.18% (2020: 2.62%) and is
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E-—F —ETEF
2021 2020
RHBETER Long-term bank loans 1.14% -1.74% 1.30% -1.78%
EEBIEEITER Trust receipt bank loans 0.74% -1.39% 0.77% -1.29%
HHRITER Short-term bank loans 1.06% -1.45% 1.10% -1.45%
32 B 32 SHARE CAPITAL
BHEE H{E
Number of Nominal
shares value
BEET T
HK$'000
EREESEE010TT2E®AE  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
JEERRAN - Authorised:
R-—ZE-_E5—-A—H8- At 1 January 2020,
—E-EF+=-A=+—-HE 31 December 2020 and
—_E-_—-%+=-HA=+—8H 31 December 2021 700,000,000 70,000
BT RAERA Issued and fully paid:
R-—ZE-_2F—-A—H8- At 1 January 2020,
—E-EF+=-A=+—-HE 31 December 2020 and
—_E-_—-%+=-H=+—8H 31 December 2021 478,483,794 47,848

FA - RARBHEERNERRGEE
B HEHBERADEEA EHES °

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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33 fi#tlE (&)

Mita :

MizEDb :

REEZ BEHRREAEER-NNAE
FEARPTUE I B A R ) < T (B 2
ARRFRBEBEMETRO ZEERE Z
ER e

TEAMERETA - AR BRFEAM
VS E Sl )= NCIP BN = v S
mEME EHAEFERER) 2—
RFBREEERES -

S—REET S REPERESHER
ERZEE  TRERASEANED
10% BEEEFE — KRR - AEBREA
AR RCRAE AL B 0 R BT R =54
R BEREEHREIZEREIMER
Z250% @ BIAERIEHEE—F 20
e - —REFHTARNEHBEFEEA
FAR BT

SEEERESHE - DEZBALTD
HEESFETE - CEERESTAR
EBRERR -

BE-_Z-—4F+-_A=+—HI#
g A#23850005C (Z T T4 :
B 4,159,0007T) BB E — R FHE
REC¥EBERES -

33 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:
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The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time
of the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion of
their after — tax profit (after offsetting prior years’ losses)
to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion
fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
statutory general reserve. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to
equity owners. When the balance of reserve reaches
50% of each entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The general reserve can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the
issuance of bonus shares.

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the
development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
HK$2,385,000 (2020: HK$4,159,000) was appropriated
to the general reserve and the enterprise expansion
fund.
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34 ZERERER 34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS
(a) BREFEBBIATFIE ~ (&#E) & (a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before

EEELANBSFHECYEE

income tax to net cash generated from

/(1 N operations is as follows:
—E-—fF —E_TF
2021 2020
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZiBEE Operating activities
BRETS TR FIE, Profit/(loss) before income tax
(E518) 126,662 (735,630)
T SIEFE Adjustments for:
FERA — F58 Finance costs — net 28,835 37,292
Bl & Share of (profits)/losses of joint ventures
(FE) k18 (32,074) 324,231
JE1E — KBk & R E A Share of profit of an associate (3,123) (949)
e Depreciation 76,437 70,921
HEME  BEX Gains on disposals of property, plant
Bl PR & and equipment (1,857) (198)
FEWE 5 RR R 2B Provision/(reversal) of impairment
EiEEgE S (#mE) losses on trade receivables 1,126 (590)
GEA R0l € Gains on lease modification - (167)
B 1 BR SR8 Write-off of other payables (5,169) -
WEAEFEMIE Recovery of amounts due from an
g AN associate previously written off (7,310) -
EERMEFE Y Impairment losses of stock of
BEEE completed properties = 22,940
HEYENAAEE Change in fair value of investment
bk properties 11,700 483,025
EEESEHR Operating cash flows before changes in
KERERE working capital 195,227 200,875
=g Inventories (66,403) 25,734
JE W B 5 AR K Trade receivables (70,682) 5,492
BAHIE - FI& Prepayments, deposits and other
T A FEUBR 3R receivables (24,605) (3,592)
BB SRR Trade payables (17,167) (24,630)
FERTE R REM Accruals and other payables
FETBRFK 28,387 (9,084)
AHaE Contract liabilities (37,899) 16,725
EEEENRS Cash generated from operations 6,858 211,520

IREBREEBERIT 2021 F5



e SRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 ZREHRTRER (H)

b) ERSRBRA HENE-

(c)

BERRERERERRE

34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS (continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds
from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

—E-—F —ZEFF
2021 2020
BT T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REDFE Net book amount 451 589
HEME - BER Gains on disposals of property,
Bz Was plant and equipment 1,857 198
HEME - BER Proceeds from disposals of property,
RAEFTIF A plant and equipment 2,308 787
BERFEEER (c) Net debt reconciliation

REEHIN % 25| AR E 5 F 5
DM RERFEEE -

This section sets out an analysis of net debt
and the movements in net debt for each of the
period presented.

—EC-—fF —ETF

2021 2020

BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

B4 RIBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 400,818 680,202
EAERTTIERK Short-term bank deposits 877,757 738,916
XRGIEE Restricted cash 136,320 2,981

HEBE — REEH Lease liabilities — current portion (20,804) (5,147)

MEAE — ERHEHD  Lease liabilities — non-current portion (26,312) (27,946)
B — AR—FNEE  Borrowings - repayable within one year (774,164) (854,008)
B3 — AR —F1%EE Borrowings - repayable after one year (1,301,554) (1,184,662)
B HHE Net debt (707,939) (649,664)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 229



e ISR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 MERERER (&) 34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
(c) ERFELHK (&) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
HfpgE RERE AR
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
ReR R-ER ER-ER
RESEE  AMEOER  XRMAR BERE  -EAEE -FEER 48
Borrowings-  Borrowings-
Cash and cash  Short-term bank repayable within  repayable after
equivalents deposits  Restricted cash ~ Lease liabilities one year one year Total

ARTT RRTR ARTR AR AR AR ARTT
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS§ 000

W-E-%£-5-8 Net debt as at

LEHER 1 January 2020 543314 641,886 2,949 (503%9) (T09621)  (1,226,365) (775.376)
Reie Cash flows 59990 89,039 (22.968) 18,134 (102484) - 411
NERR Foreign exchange acjustments 76,89 7991 - 2917 - - 87,806
WERE Acquisiion of leases - - - (4,023) - - (4023)
LU D) Other non-cash movemens - - - 218 (41,909) 41903 218
WZFZET-AZ1-A Netdebtasat

ZEREE 31 December 2020 660,202 738,016 2,081 (33,099) (854008 (1,184,662) (649,664)
Beig Cash flows (298,980) 126411 131,422 20,782 181,452 (218,500) (57,419)
HESR Foreign exchange adjustments 19,59 12,430 1917 (481) - - 33,462
YEHE Acquisiion of leases - - - (34,324) - - (34,324)
Bk o) Other nor-cash movements - - - - (101,608) 101,608 -
WZEZ-E1ZB=+-F Netdebtasat

LRHRE 31 December 2021 400818 877,757 136,320 (47,116) (1460 (1,301,554) (7079%9)
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ANTOBEZ2HBERRREFE®E 35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
b FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
—E-—F —TEF
2021 2020
BET T ST T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
EREEE Non-current asset
MEARMEE  Investments in subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
REBEE Current assets
ENAFEIE - FJek Prepayments, deposits and other
H b UL AR X receivables 323 315
JRE LT B JBB R B 3R E Amounts due from subsidiaries 473,774 448,774
RERBEECEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,704 1,575
e e e ececccecccemcccceeicooeoo.... 475,801 450,664
BWEE Total assets 1,039,167 1,014,030
s EQUITY
BEREAQATEEA Equity attributable to owners of the
2R Company
(&N Share capital 47,848 47,848
E M Other reserves B 5E Note 675,934 675,934
REE B Retained earnings Fff 5 Note 75,207 68,903
Rogs Totalequity 798,989 = 792,685
=K LIABILITIES
piE =R Current liabilities
EstER R EMERBEF  Accruals and other payables 3,032 3,057
FEAT M /B A R FIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 237,146 218,288
was® 00 Total liabilittes 240,178 221,345
BERREE Total equity and liabilities 1,039,167 1,014,030
REBEEFEE Net current assets 235,623 229,319
BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 798,989 792,685

B RRenN—_E-_—_F=HA_-_+=H
EEEe e RIEETIE - WHTIIE

SREREE -

ERBHKR
FERITHARE,

ITEH

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

23 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN

WONG YIN MAN, ADA

s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 RAIEEZHBEMRRKEFEE 35 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
28 (&) FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)

MizE « ARRIEEES Note: Reserves movement of the Company

REE EXEERHE BERRH REBF bl

Capital
Share redemption  Contributed Retained

premium reserve surplus earnings Total

BT AT BT AT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z2-Z25-A-8 At 1 January 2020 153,025 345 522,564 64,841 740,775
FEAH Profit for the year - - - 27,987 27,987
ZTTFENRE Dividends paid relating to 2020 - - - (23,925) (23,925)
R-B-FF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 153,025 345 522,564 68,903 744,837
FEHE Profit for the year - - - 23,051 23,051
—Z-FEMARE Dividends paid relating to 2021 - - - (16,747) (16,747)
R-B-—-F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 153,025 345 522,564 75,207 751,141
RARFBIZEBEHBREAEER - NANTFEHERFAR The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
RAFEEHEAREAEEFEZ RABEEAR between the book values of the underlying net assets of the
AMEMEITROCEBEWNE ZZEZ8 - IRIBEAF subsidiaries acquired by the Company, and the nominal value of
ERARRBIZARIMA] > KRB 2 BHABRAIHD the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
T AR o Group’s reorganisation in 1990. Under the Companies Act and the

Bye-laws of the Company, contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution to the shareholders.
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36 EiE

(a)

M RERRELERAE
m -

36 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments in respect of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

—E--F —ETHF

2021 2020

BT T ok i

HK$’000 HK$'000

EEFIEES Contracted but not provided for 69,847 9,457
BEEERETL Authorised but not contracted for - -
69,847 9,457

WZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
AEEREZMHDTARMECHEE
BFgeEfensgr izl
ADTTAT

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s future
rental income receivables under various non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises are analysed as follows:

—EF--F ke

2021 2020

BETT BETIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 50,446 26,024
F_ZENTFE (BIEEEME) Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 120,165 5,605
170,611 31,629

MEMERFE RSB HHHE
REMEXER zZ2EE - HOR
MEZPHFHITHEARER
(ZFZFF :23%F) -

Operating lease receipts represent rentals
receivable by the Group for leasing its
investment properties. Leases and rentals are
negotiated and fixed for an average of 3 years
(2020: 2.3 years).
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37 MEALRE

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H AR
ZERABRRBEBREE (1I/\)SUE§¢

Salop Hong Kong Limited

C B TSARH

E -8 T =PV Ezt /NI DI

(a)

(b)

(c)

EARIE A+ 255 ER

JEWMALLERBEHRNEASY
Bk BEERD B EHR
MfsF 19 o

R

RZEZ—F+=—HA=+—H"
RARIREWBRAEROBE
3,392,963,0007C (Z T —F 4 :
75 #3,010,368,0007T) Z $R1TRE
& MIRTTIR B EER o

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8"
MEBARIFBAMNEE LN A B
2,075,718,000 C (ZE =& F :
75 2,038,670,0007T) °

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Hong Kong Limited, a
company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a)

(b)

Balances with related parties

The amounts due from joint ventures are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The terms are set out in Note 19
respectively.

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2021, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,392,963,000 (2020:
HK$3,010,368,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$2,075,718,000 (2020: HK$2,038,670,000).

FEEE A S RM (c) Key management compensation
—E-—F —EFF
2021 2020
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
o RERM Salaries and allowances 15,107 15,926
TE4T Bonus 4,111 5,687

RIREAAR Pension costs

— ATEH-KEE — defined contribution schemes 72 54
19,290 21,667
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e SRR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 MBHRRKBHRBRE SR

fEOmicron BIER T —F ¥/ %
% —RIBRIEHPERESIEES T
EERTRER  EEEBBRUBEE
Omicron & 8 K18 8 A RAP A HE AL
EMBRENTE - BEAREAHE
B IR JE I A LR Omicron & 15 18
BEHPBIRRIER T ERTFIZE -

38 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE

DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Subsequent to the outbreak of Omicron, in early
2022, a series of tightened precautionary and
control measures have been implemented in Hong
Kong and China. Management will pay close
attention to the outbreak of Omicron and evaluate
the impacts to the financial performance of the
Group. As at the date of this report, management
is not aware of any material adverse effect to the
financial statements as a result of this Omicron
outbreak.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R-FE-——F+=-H=4+—H Asat31 December 2021

NEEBRAE g BHAEEER (T5R) HEES R# HEHR THIER rREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry ~ Completion Interest
AREECRENE
Investment properties in Hong Kong
ERNERRAEE 81T
One Harbour Square 9% + 10% - 128 - “ImEE
1518 1618 - 1718 - 1818 - 198 T 20 BaE BRI 173% BrE  AA=TA B
9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th, 19thand  Office 12,089 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
20th floors, One Harbour Square, Inland Lot No. 173
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
EENEERGEEBIR “EmtE
One Harbour Square 43 BB & BBl EERME 1735 e A~EZTA BRN
43 car parking spaces, One Harbour Square, Car parking 538 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, spaces Inland Lot No. 173
Hong Kong
NRERZERRNERE
Stock of completed properties
in Hong Kong
BENEEREEE 1815 ZEMtE
One Harbour Square 718 N EEAME 1735 H#AE ~E=1A B
Tth floors, One Harbour Square, Office 1,354 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Inland Lot No. 173
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEEREEE 1815 ZEmtE
One Harbour Square 14 A1 EBfr BEMAE 1735 g AAZTH B
14 car parking spaces, One Harbour Car parking 175 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, spaces Inland Lot No. 173

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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